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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

RESULTS

The Directors are pleased to report the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31st
March, 2004. Turnover has increased by 14% to
approximately HK$693 million and profit attributable to
shareholders has increased by 10% to approximately
HK$58 million.

The satisfactory results were achieved against a number of
challenges including: (i) the sudden influx of orders within
short periods of time; (ii) the tight delivery schedules and
demanding prices of the orders; and (iii) the significant
increase in the costs of paper materials during the year.
Notwithstanding these challenges, with the Group’s
ongoing improvement programme firmly established, the
Group was able to further increase its cost efficiency and
production flexibility to minimise the impact. The Group's
core businesses of printing and packaging continued to
perform satisfactorily with paper products reporting a solid
growth. Significant improvement was seen in the
environmentally friendly products division, which
benefiting from the Group’s realignment of resources
recorded a profit. The licensed products division has
incurred a small loss, and is making efforts to facilitate its
long-term development.

An analysis of the Group's results for the year by principal
product category is as follows:

Category
Al

BEMH  BEBEK
HEEMm
REREm

Packaging materials,
labels and paper products
Environmentally friendly products

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK2 cents
(2003: HK2 cents) per share for the year ended 31st March,
2004 payable on Monday, 20th September, 2004 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members on Friday, 3rd September, 2004. Together with
the interim dividend of HK1.5 cents (2003: HK1 cent) paid,
full year dividends for the financial year would be HK3.5
cents per share (2003: HK3 cents).
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Turnover taxation
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g
EXZERRN_STNFNAZH(EHA) B
JIIRREMWKRER - KBEBE_TZTNF=A
ZST-RLEFENRERESRBE W (=F
E=F  BEC) c AEREBNR-ZEETNF
NBEZ+R(EH—-)IKE - ER KRB+ H
RESBREE -—HIWLW(ZTE=F : B%—
i) AFEEE2FREABRBBE=HEWL (=
EE=-F BE=) -



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The year under review was a year of challenges for Hong
Kong'’s printing and packaging industry. At the beginning of
the financial year, the outbreak of severe acute respiratory
syndrome (SARS) caused an interruption to the sales and
marketing activities of the industry and a delay in orders by
customers. However, market sentiment began to change in
June 2003 when SARS subsided and signs of a global
economic recovery emerged.

As the global economic recovery gained momentum,
consumer and corporate confidences also improved.
However, uncertainties including geopolitical tensions and
terrorist threats continued to overshadow the market and
periodically dampened sentiment. As a result, there was
high volatility in market demand, which restrained general
merchandisers, particularly those in the United States and
Europe, from increasing prices and building up inventory.
The impact was transferred down the chain, with the local
printing and packaging service providers witnessing more
rushed orders with lower gross profit margins.
Simultaneously, the service providers were confronted by
the higher costs of paper materials, largely as a result of
the global economic recovery.

Such an environment presented great challenges to the
Group, in particular its Suzhou subsidiary which is still in
its initial stage of development, and its Singapore
subsidiary which is working to improve its profitability.
Nonetheless, by capitalising on its competitive advantages,
the Group was able to minimise the impact. Both the
“Starlite Innovation Centre” and the “Starlite Institute of
Management” provided strong support for the Group to
meet customers’ needs. The contract processing
arrangement in Shaoguan, Guangdong province also
helped the Group reduce costs and increase flexibility for
rushed orders. As a result, the Group was able to increase
its bottom line earnings and strengthen its balance sheet
during the year under review. As at 31st March, 2004, the
Group had net current assets of approximately HK$48
million, representing a turnaround from the working
capital deficiency that has been recorded by the Group
during the previous several years.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The Group’s core businesses of printing and packaging
performed well with paper products recording a
satisfactory growth. The Singapore operation recorded a
decline in profit due to the volatile market conditions, but
is showing signs of improvement in sales and profitability
in recent months. The newly established Suzhou subsidiary
incurred a loss for the year under review. However, with
the second phase of development completed this month, it
is set to gain higher economies-of-scale benefits, which
should enable it to increase its competitive advantages.
Significant improvement was seen in the environmentally
friendly products division, which benefiting from the
Group’s realignment of resources recorded a profit. While
the licensed products division incurred a small loss, it
made progress in strengthening its groundwork for future
development.

Packaging materials, labels and paper products

Hong Kong Operations/Mainland China Operations
Despite intensified market competition and the increased
volatility of orders, the Group’s printing and packaging
businesses in Hong Kong/Mainland China recorded a
growth in turnover for the year ended 31st March, 2004.
This was attributable to the Group’s further strengthening
of sales and marketing, improvement in management and
logistics control, and better realignment of resources for
maximising the production efficiency of the operations.

Satisfactory performance was recorded in the sales of
paper products, which have established a strong reputation
for their innovative design and fine workmanship with the
support of the “Starlite Innovation Centre”. The “Starlite
Institute of Management” continued to organise various
training courses for the Group’s staff, focusing on the
concepts of up and down stream value-chain management,
to make them more equipped in meeting the challenges
arising from the changes in market environment.

As a result of these successful efforts, the Group was able
to meet customers’ pricing and service needs and help
them secure and expand their market shares. This has
further strengthened the Group’s strategic alliances with its
customers, which the management believes will help
safeguard the Group’s long-term prosperity.

In October 2003, Starlite Development (China) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group engaging in the
marketing of paper products, was awarded the “2003 Trade
Development Council Export Marketing Award” by the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council in recognition of
its outstanding export marketing performance.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Suzhou Plant

Affected by SARS, the Suzhou subsidiary recorded sluggish
business in the first half of the financial year. Although its
sales improved in the second half, the full-year turnover
figure was still below expectation. The pressure on order
prices also affected the performance of the Suzhou
subsidiary. In its initial stage of development, the Suzhou
subsidiary has been focusing on the building up of a strong
customer base through the provision of total quality
management services. However, the concept was relatively
new to local enterprises which mainly conducted their
sales in the domestic market, whereas foreign enterprises
which were largely exporters demanded lower prices to
safeguard their competitiveness in the overseas markets.
The restraint in production scale limited the Suzhou
subsidiary’s room to manoeuvre its gross profit margin
through internal operations, which was aggravated by the
significant increase in the costs of paper materials.

Currently, the Suzhou subsidiary is taking positive steps to
improve its performance in the current financial year. For
instance, it has commenced its second phase of
development in late 2003 by installing another production
line in its plant. Completion of machinery installation is
expected to take place in July 2004 and commercial
production will follow shortly. This will enable the Suzhou
subsidiary to enjoy higher economies-of-scale benefits,
which should help increase its cost efficiency. In addition,
the launch of a cross-sector marketing programme by the
Suzhou subsidiary in recent months has gained a
favourable response, with the value of total quality
management gaining stronger recognition among the local
and foreign enterprises contacted. The management
believes that this provides a good leverage for the Suzhou
subsidiary to generate better results.

There are strong signs that the demand for printing and
packaging services will grow further in the Yangtze River
delta as the region is increasingly being favoured by both
local and foreign investors as a strategic base for
expanding domestic sales in the eastern China and
increasing export sales to the overseas markets. The
Suzhou subsidiary with its strong business relationships
should be able to capture the opportunities from these
increasing domestic and export activities.

Looking ahead, the management remains optimistic that
the Suzhou project can generate good revenues for the
Group over the medium and long term.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Shaoguan Contract Processing

The contract processing agreement entered into with a
factory in Shaoguan, Guangdong early this year proved
beneficial to the Group. By allocating some of the more
labour-intensive production to the Shaoguan factory, the
Group was able to increase its production capacity for
rushed orders while reducing its production costs. The
quality of the products has been satisfactory, and the
Group is now actively considering further means,
including the expansion of the Shaoguan processing
capacity, to increase the benefits.

Singapore Operation

Despite stronger economic activity in the United States,
manufacturers in Singapore experienced a restraint on
pricing power during the year under review. The major
sectors including the electronics sector had to meet the
competition from their counterparts in the Asian countries
for exports to the United States market, where pricing
played an increasingly important role. Such pressure was
transferred directly down the chain, and the adverse effect
was particularly pronounced in sectors such as the printing
sector, where competition was intense. Under these
circumstances, the Group’s Singapore subsidiary recorded
a decline in profit for the year ended 31st March, 2004.

Nonetheless, there are signs that the unwinding of excess
capacity in Singapore is entering into a final stage, which
should help improve the supply and demand situation.
Moreover, the Singapore subsidiary has proven its ability to
continuously improve its cost structure and expand its
source of revenue, and has been able to develop new
measures to tackle the changes in market environment. Its
uninterrupted track record of maintaining a profit
throughout the years reflected the competence of the
management. Currently, the management has seen some
favourable results from its sales and marketing and cost
reduction efforts, and is hopeful that higher profitability is
in sight for the Singapore subsidiary.

Environmentally friendly products

The environmentally friendly products division turned to
profit during the year under review, with a highly
significant increase in turnover recorded as a result of
further expansion of product lines from interior packaging
products and Greenworks products to other paper
products. Stringent cost control measures also contributed
to the turnaround to profit. The management will continue
to increase the sales and cost efficiency of this division in
order to sustain its profit growth.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Licensed products

The licensed products division incurred a small loss for the
year ended 31st March, 2004. However, by focusing on the
promotion of the Group’s own brand “Robbi the bunny”,
including the monthly publication of Robbi magazines, the
division was able to increase the brand awareness of “Robbi
the bunny” while exploring for opportunities to expand its
revenues.

Progress has been made for the long-term development of
the business, including discussions with agents to help
promote “Robbi the bunny” in the local and international
markets and the production of Robbi cartoon series. China
is one of those markets where the market environment is
favourable to the launch of “Robbi the bunny” products.
Given that a relatively small amount of investment is
required, the management believes that the further
development of the licensed products business should
yield good returns for the Group in the long run.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s sources of funding include cash generated
from the Group’s operations and banking facilities
provided to the Group by banks mainly in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. As at 31st March, 2004, the Group’s cash
and bank balances and short-term bank deposits amounted
to approximately HK$83 million.

During the year under review, the interest expenses of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$6.4 million
compared to approximately HK$6.7 million recorded last
year. Currently, the Group has Renminbi-denominated loan
facilities amounting to approximately RMB85 million that
are available for the Group’s Shenzhen, Guangzhou,
Shaoguan and Suzhou plants for working capital purposes.

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group had a working capital
surplus of approximately HK$47.6 million compared to a
working capital deficiency of approximately HK$1.6
million as at 31st March, 2003. The Group's debt-to-equity
ratio as at 31st March, 2004 was 60% (31st March, 2003:
60%), based on short-term and long-term bank borrowings
and other debts/borrowings (excluding trade related debts
and borrowings) of approximately HK$167 million (31st
March 2003: HK$140 million), and shareholders’ funds of
approximately HK$279 million (31st March, 2003:
HK$232 million). The Group will continue to adopt
prudent policies to maintain a healthy financial position.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st March, 2004, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$79 million
(31st March, 2003: HK$81 million) were pledged to secure
the banking facilities of the Group.

EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

All the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated either in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Renminbi, Japanese Yen, Singapore dollars or Euro. The
exchange rate of US dollars/Hong Kong dollars is relatively
stable due to the current peg system in Hong Kong. On the
other hand, the existing Renminbi-denominated sales
revenue helps to reduce the Group’s exposure to its
commitments of Renminbi-denominated operating
expenses of its subsidiaries in China. Transaction values
involving Japanese Yen or Euro were primarily related to
the Group’s purchase of machinery and such exposures
were generally hedged by forward contracts.

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT

Currently the Group has more than 6,000 employees. The
Group maintains good relations with its employees,
providing them competitive packages and incentive
schemes as well as various training programmes. Besides, a
new Share Option Scheme complying with the revised
Listing Rules requirements was adopted in September 2002
under which share options will be granted to certain
employees (including executive directors of the Company)
as incentive for their contribution to the Group. Following
the opening of the “Starlite Institute of Management”, the
Group provides various training and development
programmes to staff on an ongoing basis. The Group will
explore the possibility of launching other special training
programmes with universities in China and education
institutions abroad to further enhance its staff quality.

LOOKING AHEAD

With higher interest rates on the horizon, concerns about
their impact on the global economic recovery are rising. A
slow-down in the United States coinciding with a cool-
down in the Chinese economy would have repercussions
on the rest of the world. The Asia-Pacific region offers a
more promising outlook, given that the strong liquidity in
the region should allow central banks to hold interests
rates unchanged for a period of time, and the fact that the
Japanese economy has shown signs of turning around.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

While the macroeconomic conditions have significant
importance, the crucial issue for the Hong Kong’s printing
and packaging industry remains to be whether the
merchandisers, particularly those in the United States and
Europe, can regain pricing power. Consumer expectations
of rising inflation might give room for price increases, on
the other hand, low-cost production bases such as India
and China might act as deflationary influences on prices in
the long term. Due to intense market competition, the
scope for the printing and packaging industry to transfer
the entire additional costs to customers might be limited,
whereas more subcontracting and freight charges might be
incurred if the irregular pattern and the rushing nature of
the orders further intensify.

The management believes that the best way to safeguard
the Group’s profitability is to further increase its
competitive advantages and create better value for
customers. In this regard, the Group is taking a number of
new measures, including the re-engineering of its logistics
and the implementation of an enterprise resources
planning system, to further enhance the cost structure and
efficiency of its operations. These efforts would enable the
Group to have stronger flexibilities to cater for the changes
in market conditions and the requirements of customers,
which are the essentials to the Group’s long-term
prosperity.
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CHAIRMAN'’S LETTER

During the past year, Starlite people demonstrated
excellent team spirit in both good and bad times. Working
shoulder to shoulder, we put our heart and soul into the
creation of new innovative products and the development
of new overseas markets. We were gratified that these
efforts yielded remarkable results, notably the “2003 Trade
Development Council Export Marketing Award” granted by
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. In the coming
year, we will continue with our dedicated efforts to
actively expand our market and to further strengthen our
corporate development platform.

The establishment of “Starlite Institute of Management”
fulfilled our commitment to providing continuous education
and training for our staff and simultaneously rewarded us
with an enhanced workforce of higher professionalism and
stronger capability. We have truly made Starlite not only a
working and living place but also a learning and maturing
ground for our staff. Moreover, the “Starlite Institute of
Management” met its responsibility of providing our
suppliers and customers with training and education, which
contributed to the transformation of the up-and-down-
stream printing media towards higher professionalism and
keener embracing of new high technology. The “Starlite
Innovation Centre” represents another major achievement.
Through years of practice, it has proven its important and
indispensable value to customers. We firmly believe that “an
enterprise without innovation is doomed”. By joining hands
with our customers to develop new products, we have
created a win-win formula that greatly reinforced our
strategic alliances with customers.

In recent years, strong and rapid economic growth has made
the Yangtze River delta a hot spot for multinational
investments from the United States and Europe, giving rise
to a robust demand in the area for medium and high quality
printing and packaging services. This is particularly the case
in Suzhou where market analysis shows a strong presence of
foreign investment. In view of this, the Directors decided to
reactivate its Suzhou subsidiary. The Suzhou plant
completed its first phase of development at the end of 2002,
with favourable response from the market and particularly
strong support from foreign investors to its products and
services. Consequently, the Directors launched the second
phase of development for the Suzhou plant in late 2003.
Completion of machinery installation is expected to take
place in July 2004 and commercial production will follow
shortly. Based on our current estimates, the second phase is
also likely to receive favourable market response, which will
help the Suzhou subsidiary to gain a higher market share in
the medium and high quality printing and packaging
segments in the coming years.
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CHAIRMAN'’S LETTER

Supported by Starlite staff at all levels, we are now re-
engineering our logistics operations and implementing an
Enterprise Resources Planning system to further increase
our productivity and improve our services in order to
speed up our current programme of creating better values
for customers. Our close relationships established with all
major customers have laid a solid foundation for Starlite’s
future expansion.

I am very proud of the Starlite team. A knowledge-based
organisation, we have made fascinating progress through
continuous learning. Going forward, we are determined to
create better value for our esteemed customers, and spare
no less effort in striving for higher returns for our valuable
shareholders!

Taking this opportunity, | would like to thank all our team
members for their hard work and wise judgments, our
esteemed customers for their care and support, our
beloved suppliers for their collaborations and good
services, our valuable shareholders for their trust and
patience, and our friends in the financial community for
their guardianship and care.

With unlimited passion and supreme care, the Starlite team

will bring the Starlite tree to flamboyant blossoms and
roaring success!

Lam Kwong Yu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th July, 2004
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS

mEBEER

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Distribution and selling
expenses

General and
administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance costs

Loss relating to termination
of certain licensing rights

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation but
before minority interests

Minority interests

Profit attributable to
shareholders

Dividends
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Year ended 31st March,
BE=ZA=1T—-HLFE

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
“¥EEF -PT-F -BP-F -PP=F -FENE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
F#x TR TEZ  FTER  TER
478,217 575,823 560,303 610,767 693,348
(345,631) (416,048) (392,222) (435,757) (512,547)
132,586 159,775 168,081 175,010 180,801
462 616 302 649 3,793
(29,498) (31,515) (31,676) (33,722) (39,805)
(61,912) (79,342) (76,000) (71,272) (69,427)
41,638 49,534 60,707 70,665 75,362
(14,415) (13,739) (8,690) (6,699) (6,387)
(5,569) (5,499) = = =
21,654 30,296 52,017 63,966 68,975
(4,502) (7,779) (13,119) (11,706) (11,458)
17,152 22,517 38,898 52,260 57,517
132 125 — = A
17,284 22,642 38,898 52,260 57,517
— 4,018 8,171 12,475 14,813




FINANCIAL SUMMARY EEE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

mEEERER
As at 31st March,
R=A=+—8H
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
—22ZF —2F-F ZET-HE ZZTT=F C"TENOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET FTER TAERT TER
Fixed assets BEEE 260,897 258,144 239,722 297,355 305,782
Long-term investments RERE — — — 708 905
Non-current deposits kRBRE 534 = = = ==
Current assets RBEE 159,725 168,211 177,056 216,176 284,260
Current liabilities REBEE (247,020) (222,228) (188,744) (217,746) (236,653)
Finance lease obligations, — Bf#RLEHK -
non-current portion FEENERER 1D (27,096) (38,689) (28,018) (32,798) (15,362)
Long-term bank loans, REBITER
non-current portion Ik B 29 36 4 (829) (578) (417) (17,656) (42,805)
Deferred taxation EERE (12,775) (11,530) (12,424) (13,749) (16,948)
Minority interests LHRFRER (148) 2 — — —
Net assets EEFE 133,288 153,332 187,175 232,290 279,179
Representing: (3
Share capital [N 40,180 40,180 40,180 41,597 42,517
Reserves e 93,108 113,152 146,995 190,693 236,662
Shareholders’ equity e 133,288 153,332 187,175 232,290 279,179




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have the pleasure of presenting their annual
report together with the audited accounts of Starlite
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2004.

Principal activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the printing and
manufacturing of packaging materials, labels and paper
products and environmentally friendly products.

Details of the Group’s turnover and segment result by
business segment and geographical segment are set out in
Note 27 to the accompanying accounts.

Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31st March, 2004, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 40% of the
Group’s total turnover and the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 21% of the Group’s total
purchases. In addition, the largest customer accounted for
approximately 14% of the Group’s turnover while the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 5% of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder
(which, to the knowledge of the Company’s Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

Results and appropriations

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st
March, 2004 are set out in the consolidated profit and loss
account on page 39 of this annual report.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of
HK$0.015 per ordinary share, totaling approximately
HK$6,310,000, which was paid on 9th January, 2004.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.02 per ordinary share, totalling approximately
HK$8,503,000, and recommend that the retained profits of
approximately HK$128,631,000 be carried forward.

Share capital and employee share options
Details of movements in share capital and the employee
share option scheme of the Company are set out in Notes
23 and 24, respectively, to the accompanying accounts.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Reserves
Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in Note 25 to the accompanying accounts.

As at 31st March, 2004, the Company’s retained profit of
approximately HK$46,478,000 was available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares
during the year ended 31st March, 2004.

Pre-emptive rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

Subsidiaries
Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the
accompanying accounts.

Fixed assets
Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set
out in Note 12 to the accompanying accounts.

Bank loans
Particulars of bank loans as at 31st March, 2004 are set out
in Notes 18, 21 and 30 to the accompanying accounts.

Pension schemes
Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 29 to
the accompanying accounts.

Charitable contributions
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
of approximately HK$460,000 (2003: HK$12,000).

Directors and directors’ service contracts
The directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive directors

Mr. Lam Kwong Yu, Chairman

Ms. Yeung Chui, Vice Chairman

Mr. Tai Tzu Shi, Angus, Senior Vice President

Mr. Cheung Chi Shing, Charles, Senior Vice President

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
Mr. Christopher James Williams
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, all of the
directors will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors has an unexpired contract with the
Group which is not terminable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Directors’ interests in shares and share options

As at 31st March, 2004, the interest of the Directors and
Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows :

Long positions in Shares

Name of Personal Family
Director Capacity interests interests
EEpng g4 B A ES3
Mr. Lam Kwong Yu  Beneficial owner, B & #%H + 1,500,000 500,000
A MEE interests of spouse LB

& controlled FEHAF

corporations, pa: £

beneficiary and FEZHEA

founder of trusts REIHA
Ms. Yeung Chui Beneficial owner, B#m#H 500,000 1,500,000
BREZT interests of spouse  ER B

& controlled FEHDH

corporations, ZHER

beneficiary and ERZHEA

founder of trusts RAIHA
Mr. Tai Tzu Shi, Beneficial owner ~ BHEEAR 500,000 18,000

Angus & interest of BEER
BHEEEE spouse
Mr. Cheung Beneficial owner ~ EHEH 2,000,000 =
Chi Shing, Charles

* Details of share options granted to Directors are separately
disclosed under the heading of Share option scheme.

REARF2ATME  BES2HERER
RERBFRGRE  HEHEERBE -
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BROIEXVBETRESDBANERATARE B
BEXZMAERIA (R MERI LR
(BREFEREESFRBERAZZEHRIHER
REAEABEEZEZSAR)  HRBRAEALT
BRESRBEKRHEIFEBEZ2ETMAN
BRFXE  IRBEXMFHFS AR (ML
THRAD BNEERLARBIFMNERS AR
mTE

RRGOZHR
Approximate
Corporate Other % of *Outstanding
interests interests Total Shareholding share options
EREZ EARTR
NEER Hi R By WHEIH ZBRE
504,000 215,106,174 217,610,174 51.18% 4,762,000
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(H&E1) (&£ 2)
504,000 215,106,174 217,610,174 51.18% 4,452,000
(Note 1) (Note 2)
GERY (K &E2)
— — 518,000 0.12% 1,200,000
— — 2,000,000 0.47% 1,200,000

*RTESBREZHFBERAZBRESEED AR
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Notes:

1. Dayspring Enterprises Limited held 504,000 share in the
Company. The entire issued share capital of the company is
beneficially owned and controlled by Mr. Lam Kwong Yu and
Ms. Yeung Chui. The 504,000 shares of Mr. Lam Kwong Yu and
Ms. Yeung Chui are the same block of shares.

2. The two references to 215,106,174 shares relate to the same

block of shares in the Company. Best Grade Consultants Limited
held 172,897,200 shares in the Company. The entire issued
share capital of Best Grade Consultants Limited is held by Super
Mark Enterprises Limited as trustee of The Super Star Unit Trust.
All units in The Super Star Unit Trust are beneficially owned by
two discretionary trusts, the discretionary beneficiaries of which
include Mr. Lam Kwong Yu and Ms. Yeung Chui. MeesPierson
Trust (Asia) Limited acted as trustee of the two discretionary
trusts.

Best Grade Advisory Limited (“BGAL”) held 26,010,270 shares
and Starlite Printers (Cook Islands) Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of BGAL) held 16,198,704 shares in the Company.
The entire issued share capital of BGAL is held by Masterline
Industrial Limited as trustee of The New Super Star Unit Trust.
All units in The New Super Star Unit Trust are beneficially
owned by two discretionary trusts, the discretionary
beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lam Kwong Yu, Ms. Yeung
Chui and Mr. Lam Chuen Yik, Kenneth. HSBC International
Trustee Limited acted as trustee of the two discretionary trusts.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company had, as at 31st March, 2004,
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Listing Rules.
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Share option scheme BB IR ST 8

A new share option scheme has been adopted by the AARH-ZEZE-_FhASNBEEMNTERE
Company since 6th September 2002 (the “New Share & ([FEBREE ) UEBRKR—AA=ZF=
Option Scheme”) to replace a share option scheme which A N\NBRMHZBEREE ((EBRETED -
had been adopted on 8th February 1993 (the “Old Share MFFEBRITZEEER o A AT AR B R E
Option Scheme”) to comply with the current statutory FHEIff5I@MSEATRFHERE - EBRES
requirements. The Company may grant options to the BIRFBREFENFTENT

participants as set out in the New Share Option Scheme.

Summary of the Old Share Option Scheme and the New

Share Option Scheme was as follows :

Old Share Option Scheme New Share Option Scheme
EERETE HBIREE
1. Purpose of the Old and New  As an incentive to employees. To provide participants with the
Share Option Schemes EAHESWER - opportunity to acquire proprietary
ERERESZAD interests in the Company and to

encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its Shares.

RBRATRHUESEADAMEA
BeHeE  AHBBEATHD
BAXAARERG 2EE -

2. Participants of the Old and  Any full-time employee of the (i) Any full-time employee of

New Share Options Schemes ~ Company or any Subsidiary the Company or of any
EpsEREtgnwamA (including full-time executive Subsidiary ; and
+ directors of the Company or any
Subsidiary). (i) Any full-time executive
KATREMEBATNZRIES director of the Company or
(BEAAIREMBLAZ2H CUE7ZLHCIEL
HTES) -
(i) AQFREMBRAAZZH
BE R

(i) AARNHEMBLIAZEH
HITES



3. Total number of Shares
available for issue under the
Old and New Share Option
Schemes and percentage of
issued share capital as at the
date of the annual report

RSB B B IR A AT 81 A 3
TROBERRAFHRAH
HERITRABD

Old Share Option Scheme
EBRETE

The maximum number of Shares
in respect of which options may
be granted (when aggregated with
any securities subject to any other
share option scheme(s) of the
Group) shall not exceed 10% of
the number of issued Shares of the
Company from time to time
excluding the aggregate number of
shares which are issued pursuant
to the Old Share Option Scheme.
REBRESEIMAIER T 2B
F (B A 52 B AL fth B8 e A =T 81
FREARTEZERE SERG R
BREE  TREBAQANE
BEBITRA10%  HEFEEETRE
REEBRESER T 2BRE
T 2REG
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New Share Option Scheme
WIBIREE

The Company may initially grant
options representing 41,250,098
Shares under the New Share Option
Scheme (i.e. approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the
approval of the New Share Option
Scheme and approximately 9.7% of
the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the
annual report).

The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes adopted by the
Company must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to
time. No options may be granted
under the New Share Option
Scheme or any other share option
scheme if that will result in the
30% limit being exceeded.
REFBRESS  X2TNS
AR T H K 41,250,098 R 13 (15
ARATRRMHBREEBH
ZEBRITRANI0%RERDAR
RERAMZCHTRALN9.7%)
ZHERE -

RIBARARM 2 FERETE
RAEMEA G B8R F M RTE
CEREETESRMAIRTZR
NEREZHETEEBIRE#
TIRAD 230% © fid 4R 15 37 B8 AL A 51
R FTERELSESEB30%LMR -
AR EFERE -



4. Maximum entitlement of
each participant under the
Old and New Share Option
Schemes

BUSEATRBEERHB
RETETRBNERS BHE

5. The period within which the
Shares must be taken up
under an option
REBREARBRD NS
R

6. The minimum period for
which an option must be
held before it can be
exercised.
ARTEMSABRENR
2 HA PR

Old Share Option Scheme
EBRETE

25% of the aggregate number of
Shares in respect of which options
are issuable under the Old Share
Option Scheme.
ERRESIERATRTZRG
BB 25% °

At any time during a period to be
determined by the Board, which
shall not be more than 10 years
from the date on which the option
is granted.
HESEREZHB A EME
B HEERNFAASEBREA
HIET+F

An option may be exercised at any
time during a period commencing
on the expiry of 6 calendar
months after the date of grant of
the option, but in any event not
later than 10 years from the date
of grant.

BRETREETEREERR
AAREEAREMEBTE  H
TEBBZBERERE BHI0F
BLSR o
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New Share Option Scheme
WIBIREE

The total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be
granted to each participant
(including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the
New Share Option Scheme or any
other share option scheme
adopted by the Company in any
12 month period must not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue.

REFBERETEUAREQFZ
EAEAMBBRETE - EEM12
BRAMER  ABLSEALR
THEREMBETERBRE (BEC
ITRERERITEZBRE) BT
KETFHROTZRODABH  T5E
BEBTROBEZ1%°

Must not be more than ten years
from the date of offer or grant of
the option.
BERREREE T ZHEFTE
BBt+E-

An option may be exercised at any
time during a period commencing
on the expiry of 6 calendar
months after the date of grant of
the option, but in any event not
later than 10 years from the date
of grant.
BRETRERTEREEARL
FAARERERREMSETE - I
TEBBZBREREBAHI0F
BASh o



7. The amount payable on
application or acceptance of
the option and the period
within which payments or
calls must or may be made
or loans for such purposes
must be paid

RRERENERENENS
BB DA R AY TR A A KA HB
RBEERFBREERD
Hi PR

8.  The basis of determining the
exercise price

BETEENEE

Old Share Option Scheme
EBRETE

HK$10 is to be paid as
consideration for the grant of
option and the option shall be
accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer.

EXNBBIOTERRTERE
ZRE MBRELEARETA
HiE R 28 B A ©

The exercise price is determined
by the Board in their absolute
discretion but in any event shall
not be less than the higher of:

(i)  80% of the average of the
closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding
the date of grant of an
option; or

(ii)  the nominal value of the
Shares

THREREESEE BEREE
RUTHEREE :

() BEBRERFAHAIALE
X5 B RH R T H TS
U B 80% » =

(il WMEIE -
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New Share Option Scheme
WIBIREE

The amount payable on acceptance
of an option is HK$10 and an offer
shall remain open for acceptance by
the participant for a period of 28
days from the date on which the
letter containing the offer is
delivered to that participant.

ENBRERMAINZRERB
Biow e MBEALTTREIE
WRET2E BN ERBR
B o

The exercise price shall be
determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, which must be
a business day; or

(ii)  the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the
5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or

(iii) the nominal value of the
Shares on the date of grant.

BRE2TEEHRESSEE -
BRILIUTIHESERE

(i) ROREHETBEREER
(AREXEH)BXFAEHER
BRMAFIZWHE: =

(i) BORBERERFERE
BEAAERS BB AT
SAREBRAIZFHERT
& =R

(i) REFEREEBNRASE
Eo



9.  The remaining life of the Old
and New Share Option
Schemes

BB IRAE ST 8 R &R I
R

The following table shows the movements in the
Company’s share options during the year and the

Old Share Option Scheme
EBRETE

The Old Share Option Scheme was
adopted on 8th February, 1993 and
was originally effective until 7th
February, 2003. On 6th September,
2002, the Old Share Option
Scheme was resolved by the
shareholders of the Company to
have been terminated thereon.
EBRESER-NN=F=A
NEEMARER-ZFTZE=F_A
tRAA—EBEAM -R-EZ-F
NBRB  RARABRRFBRER
EEtEmZAREUE -

outstanding options at the beginning and end of the year:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

New Share Option Scheme
WIBIREE

The New Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing
on the adoption date i.e. 6th
September, 2002.

HBRESIHEMNE (BIZZFF
TFEARARBTER-EEN
kKB -

FARBRERFACEIRNFARFLHE
RITEZBREDTRAR

Old Share Option Scheme EBREE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Date of Exercise Exercise price Beginning during during during End of
Name grant period per share of year the year the year the year year
A& RERH TEHE BRABE FH FARE FRATE FALNK FLR
HKS$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
BT F® TR TR TR TR
(i) Directors
=
Mr. Lam Kwong Yu 10.9.1997 11.3.1998 — 0.69 2,512 — — — 2,512
R0 S 9.9.2007
11.11.1997 4.5.1998 — 0.34 800 — (800) — =
3.11.2007
Ms. Yeung Chui 10.9.1997 11.3.1998 — 0.69 1,702 — — — 1,702
BRELZt 9.9.2007
11.11.1997 4.5.1998 — 0.34 800 e (800) = =
3.11.2007
(i)  Employees 28.8.2001 28.2.2002 - 0.15 650 e (650) = =
== 27.8.2006
6,464 —  (2,250) — 4,214
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New Share Option Scheme R ESTE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Date of Exercise Exercise price Beginning during during during End of
Name grant period per share of year the year the year the year year
A& RHBAH THEAHE BRABE £ FARE FRTE FARAXK F
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
BT FR TR TR TR TR
(i) Directors
Bx
Mr. Lam Kwong Yu 17.1.2003 17.7.2003 - 0.57 1,000 o (1,000) = =
M E 16.1.2006
19.2.2004 19.8.2004 — 1.07 — 2,250 — — 2,250
18.2.2007
Ms. Yeung Chui 17.1.2003 17.7.2003 — 0.57 1,000 — (500) = 500
BRELL 16.1.2006
19.2.2004 19.8.2004 — 1.07 — 2,250 — — 2,250
18.2.2007
Mr. Tai Tzu Shi, 17.1.2003 17.7.2003 — 0.57 500 — (500) — —
Angus 16.1.2006
HEELE 19.2.2004  19.8.2004 - 1.07 — 1,200 — — 1,200
18.2.2007
Mr. Cheung Chi 17.1.2003 17.7.2003 - 0.57 500 o (500) = =
Shing, Charles 16.1.2006
REREE 19.2.2004 19.8.2004 — 1.07 = 1,200 — — 1,200
18.2.2007
(i)  Employees 10.1.2003 10.7.2003 — 0.53 5,250 — (4,450) (180) 620
BE 9.1.2006
6.2.2004 6.8.2004 - 0.93 — 4,270 — — 4,270
5.2.2007
8,250 11,170 (6,950) (180) 12,290

The directors consider the disclosure of the value of
options granted during the year ended 31st March, 2004 is
not appropriate, as the variables which are crucial for the
calculation of such option value has not been determined.
Such variables include the date of exercise and other
relevant conditions. As such, the directors believe that any
calculation of the value of the options based on a number
of speculative assumptions will not be meaningful and will
be misleading to the shareholders in the circumstances.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable any of the Company’s directors or
members of its management to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

ZERR  HRYUAEBEREEEMSES
EEZ STREHEREE  RUKER-ZZF
ME=ZA=t-HALFEZBREEEDBEL
HEH ZSEBERTEAHREMERERK

e MLESERARRBEZEE] 'JIME’*““#E
ZEMBEREEEIBESSE BRR -

BREMFEEN  RERNEFAERB  F2FAR
HEANBAABESREMZH > EHAXLQ
AESHHEEEREHEVRBALAREME
o AEEZROAESMES -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 2 to the accompanying accounts,
no contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
holding companies was a party and in which any of the
Company’s directors or members of its management had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Substantial shareholders

So far as is known to any Director or Chief Executive of the
Company, as at 31st March, 2004, shareholders (other than
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company) who had
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows :

1. Long positions of substantial shareholders in the
shares of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity
BRERB 514
Best Grade Consultants Beneficial owner
Limited ERER
MeesPierson Trust (Asia) Trustee
Limited FFEA

Best Grade Advisory
Limited

EXEERZEZH
NElZER
Masterline Industrial Trustee
Limited IEEPN
HSBC International Trustee
Trustee Limited =5 A

Beneficial owner

BEER

Cheung Kwok Wing

Beneficial owner & interest
of controlled corporation

EEREHNRZAH

BRIABEM 2 BRE MY 2B E S RATHEM
BARRFEARFREMERE  LEITHEMD
EAKEXBEEMALCAESREEERE
EESBEEAEEPEAFNBZ2EESY -

FERR
BRAQAAEERBESITHRAERA  R-EET
ME=A=+—H REAQTRMKHEER D
THREEREEFSRBEGRAEXVBE2RED
R ERARQAREESTER A QATIRE
SREEGHIEIMREFTNECMANERS
KEZRR (KABRESHIRSITHRAERMN)
mE

1. EERRRACIARO 2R

Number of Approximate %
Shares of Shareholding
HREZ
8 H BRI
172,897,200 40.67%
(Note 1)
(MF=E1)
172,897,200 40.67%
(Note 1)
(Mf=E1)
42,208,974 9.93%
(Note 2)
(Mt=E2)
42,208,974 9.93%
(Note 2)
(Mt=E2)
45,708,974 10.75%
(Note 3)
(MF=E3)
22,750,000 5.35%
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2. Long positions of other persons in the shares of the 2. HMALTRAATBRHBZER

Company
Number of Approximate %
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares of Shareholding
HREZ
REREZH g7 R4 E BMAOBDE
Value Partners Limited Investment manager 25,288,000 5.95%
REKE (Note 4)
(Bt 3E4)
Cheah Cheng Hye Interest of controlled 25,288,000 5.95%
HEE corporation (Note 4)
ZEEAR R (B EE4)

Notes : KtaF -

1. The two references of 172,897,200 shares relate to the 1. T mEFIR N 2172,897,2000 & 2 B R
same block of shares in the Company. These shares are 7 BiEE-ROERE - LHRGA Best
held by Best Grade Consultants Limited. The entire Grade Consultants Limited 3578 ° Best
issued share capital of Best Grade Consultants Limited is Grade Consultants Limited Z 2382 47 &
held by Super Mark Enterprises Limited as trustee of The ZXE The Super Star Unit Trust ZfE5E A
Super Star Unit Trust. All units in The Super Star Unit Super Mark Enterprises Limited 78 ° The
Trust are beneficially owned by two discretionary trusts, Super Star Unit Trust Z Fi B B4 & B @ &
the discretionary beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lam PRETESER MAS2EEAIZZH
Kwong Yu and Ms. Yeung Chui. MessPierson Trust (Asia) ABEMEBDEERBERZLZLE oM
Limited acted as trustee of the two discretionary trusts. MeesPierson Trust (Asia) Limited W82

REEFENERTEA

2. The two references of 42,208,974 shares relate to the 2. LR AT IR & 2 42,208,9748% K D 7 IR
same block of shares in the Company. Best Grade 7 BRERE-—KRMDERE - Best Grade
Advisory Limited (“BGAL”) held 26,010,270 shares and Advisory Limited ([BGAL]) B A& A &
Starlite Printers (Cook Islands) Limited (a wholly-owned 26,010,270 f& 3 » M Starlite Printers (Cook
subsidiary of BGAL) held 16,198,704 shares in the Islands) Limited (BGAL W2 &K B A &) ¥
Company. The entire issued share capital of BGAL is held BARRTE 16,198,704 13 o BGAL 223
by Masterline Industrial Limited as trustee of The New 2#TRAE The New Super Star Unit
Super Star Unit Trust. All units in The New Super Star Trust Zf57E A Masterline Industrial Limited
Unit Trust are beneficially owned by two discretionary #5748 © The New Super Star Unit Trust Z i &
trusts, the discretionary beneficiaries of which include BEuEHmEzEETERES  mz%2
Mr. Lam Kwong Yu, Ms. Yeung Chui and Mr. Lam Chuen BERzIBABEMEMEE - BREL T
Yik, Kenneth. HSBC International Trustee Limited acted RMEREE oM HSBC International
as trustee of the two discretionary trusts. Trustee Limited W A2 EELWETEA ©

3. 42,208,974 shares of the 45,708,974 shares were the 3. 45,708,9748 H 142,208,974k B2 }f 5 (2) At
same block of shares as described in Note 2. HSBC iz R ERMEE o HSBC International
International Trustee Limited (“HSBC”), as trustee of two Trustee Limited (THSBCJ) B M 1E 2 (5
discretionary trusts in which Mr. Lam Kowng Yu, Ms. ZIEFRA MMM EE - BRLZEIRME
Yeung Chui and Mr. Lam Chuen Yik, Kenneth were the BEEAAZERETEZZ@E A HSBC #
beneficiaries, were interested and/or deemed to be AR/ SBEREEBTIMZ42,208,9748% IR
interested in the said 42,208,974 shares. The remaining iED -  TAEMEEETEZETRA XA
shares were held by other trusts for which HSBC acted as ZECERRNABOZRG -
trustee.

4. The two references to 25,288,000 shares relate to the 4. = ui W R TR &2 25,288,00088 A 2 7] AR
same block of shares in the Company. 7 BER-KROER -
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting policies adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters.

Code of best practice

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st March,
2004, except that the non-executive directors are not
appointed for specific terms. However, the non-executive
directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-laws.

Summary financial information

A summary of the Group’s financial information for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 20 to 21 of this
annual report.

Auditors

The accompanying accounts were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s
auditors for the ensuring year is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,
Lam Kwong Yu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th July, 2004
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MANAGEMENT PROFILE

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwong Yu, aged 57

Mr. Lam is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and is the founder of the Group. He holds a
Master Degree in Business Administration from the
National University of Singapore. Mr. Lam has been active
in community work in Hong Kong and China for many
years. He is a member of the 10th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a
member of Selection Committee for the 1st and 2nd
Government of HKSAR, a director of Chinese Overseas
Friendship Association, an Adjunct Professor of City
University of Hong Kong, a Director of Guangzhou Jinan
University and a Guest Professor of South China Normal
University. Mr. Lam has received several prominent awards
including “Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young Persons
Award 1986”, “Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong
1988”, “Hong Kong Entrepreneurs Award 19907,
“Outstanding Achievements Award” of the “Hong Kong
Print Award 1999” and Medal of Honor (M.H.)” from the
government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2002. Mr. Lam has over 40 years’ experience in
the printing industry and is responsible for the overall
policy making and business development of the Group.

Ms. Yeung Chui, aged 57

Ms. Yeung is the Vice Chairman of the Company. Ms.
Yeung is responsible for the finance, administration,
personnel and purchasing functions of the Group. She has
over 40 years’ experience in the printing industry. Ms.
Yeung is the wife of Mr. Lam Kwong Yu.

Mr. Tai Tzu Shi, Angus, aged 47

Mr. Tai is the Senior Vice President of the Company. He
joined the Group in 1990 and is responsible for the overall
management and productions functions of the Group. He
graduated from the Graphics Art Department of the
Chinese Culture University of Taiwan in 1978. He is the
author of the book titled “The Quality Control of the
Printing Industry”. He has over 20 years’ experience in the
printing industry.

EERERITBRARESR
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Mr. Cheung Chi Shing, Charles, aged 48

Mr. Cheung is the Senior Vice President of the Company.
He joined the Group in early 1997 and is responsible for
the overall finance and administration functions of the
Group, and has been appointed as a director in September
2000. He has held various senior positions in finance,
accounting and auditing fields for more than 20 years. Mr.
Cheung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is an Associate Member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants and a Fellow Member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 52

Mr. Chan is the Executive Chairman of the publicly-listed
Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited. He holds a double major
Degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Masters
degree in City Planning from the University of Manitoba
and an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration. He is currently the Honorary Adviser of the
Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and full member of the
Canadian and Hong Kong Institute of Planners. He has
over 10 years of professional experience in the public
sector and over 18 years’ managerial experience in the
food and beverage industry.

Mr. Christopher James Williams, aged 45

Mr. Williams was appointed an independent non-executive
director of the Company in February 1997. He is a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong and is a partner in the
firm of Richards Butler. He is qualified in England and
Wales and in Hong Kong and has over 19 years of the legal
experience. His area of specialisation include corporate
finance, capital markets, mergers and acquisitions, joint
ventures and cross border transactions.

Senior Management

Mr. Lim Pheck Wan, Richard, aged 39

Mr. Lim is the Senior Vice President (Marketing and Sales)
of the Company. He joined the Group in 1994 and is
responsible for the overall sales and marketing function of
the Group. He has held various senior position within the
Group, and until recently was the General Manager for its
Singapore and Suzhou subsidiaries. Mr. Lim holds a Master
of Science Degree in International Marketing from the
University of Strathclyde, Glasgow, and has more than 15
years experience in the printing industry.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

I

BORMKEETEHAT

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF STARLITE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 39 to 84 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The company’s directors are responsible for the
preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view. In
preparing accounts which give a true and fair view it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those accounts and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors
in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of
the company and of the group, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to
give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are
free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the accounts. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2289 8888

Facsimile  (852) 2810 9888

www.pwchk.com
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. e =z
Opinion =

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the ZZEMREH » LM ZRERZUEERA T
state of affairs of the company and of the group as at 31st H/R BARE BEER-_ZZTWNF=/=
March, 2004 and of the group’s profit and cash flows for +— H&ERZBHBERIR BEBEHZEZA
the year then ended, and have been properly prepared in I EEZEFNEREHRE » WREFTBAFF
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong fl 2 BEREZHFEH -

Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers BEERKEGTMEBAM
Certified Public Accountants HESTED
Hong Kong, 15th July, 2004 &8 —EENFLATEA



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT #HEEnR

For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BHZE_ZZME=A=+—HILFE

2004 2003
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5F FET FET
Turnover = 3 693,348 610,767
Cost of sales $HE R A (512,547) (435,757)
Gross profit EF 180,801 175,010
Other revenue Hn g A 3 3,793 649
Distribution and selling expenses HEEH (39,805) (33,722)
General and administrative —RITHER
expenses (69,427) (71,272)
Operating profit REHER 4 75,362 70,665
Finance costs B & E H 5 (6,387) (6,699)
Profit before taxation B& 4 B R 68,975 63,966
Taxation 18 8 (11,458) (11,706)
Profit attributable to shareholders BREFE(EER 9 57,517 52,260
Dividends ’E 10 14,813 12,475
Earnings per share SRER 11
— Basic — HK HK13.7 cents HK12.7 cents
— Diluted — s HK13.6 cents HK12.6 cents




BALANCE SHEETS EEE&EXR

As at 31st March, 2004 R-_ZETEWNF=A=+—H

Consolidated Company
ey AT
2004 2003 2004 2003
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B TER TET TER FTEx
Non-current assets F(RBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 12 305,782 297,355 = =
Long-term investments RORE 13 905 708 — =
Investment in subsidiaries REBARIZRE 14 = — 197,453 206,281
Total non-current assets IRBEELE 306,687 298,063 197,453 206,281
Current assets TRBEE
Inventories 7E 15 59,414 48,180 . =
Accounts and bills receivable BUERKEEE 16 119,000 79,094 — —
Prepayments and deposits BANRERESE 22,592 13,694 633 840
Pledged bank deposits EEMRTER 17 11,922 11,551 — —
Cash and other bank deposits BReREMBRTER 17 71,332 63,657 1,695 421
Total current assets RBEERRE 284,260 216,176 2,328 1,261
Current liabilities RBEE
Short-term bank borrowings RHMRTEN 18 (91,228) (74,127) — —
Finance lease obligations, MBRANES
current portion IR Ry 19 (17,731) (22,986) = =
Accounts and bills payable BAERAKRE 20 (86,960) (73,280) — =
Accruals and other payables FEitaEREft (34,076) (44,657) (707) (1,147)
ANE
Taxation payable FEf+ BB (6,658) (2,696) (88) =
Total current liabilities REBEBEARE (236,653) (217,746) (795) (1,147)
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (BR) FH 47,607 (1,570) 1,533 114
Total assets less current BEERRBERE
liabilities 354,294 296,493 198,986 206,395
Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Finance lease obligations, BHRNES -
non-current portion FEEEHH 19 (15,362) (32,798) = —
Long-term bank loans, RERTEN
non-current portion FEEIH 21 (42,805) (17,656) = —
Deferred taxation EERIE 22 (16,948) (13,749) = —
Total non-current liabilities *(RBEBEE (75,115) (64,203) == =
Net assets EERE 279,179 232,290 198,986 206,395




BALANCE SHEETS EEE&EXR

As at 31st March, 2004 R-_ZETEWNF=A=+—H

Consolidated Company
) AL

2004 2003 2004 2003

Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Pt &E TERT TERT TER TER
Financed by: K&

Share capital [N 23 42,517 41,597 42,517 41,597

Reserves e 25 236,662 190,693 156,469 164,798

Shareholders’ equity BRIRE S 279,179 232,290 198,986 206,395

Lam Kwong Yu Yeung Chui
AR 10 BE
Chairman Vice Chairman
oy & EE



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BHZE_ZZME=A=+—HILFE

Operating activities
Net cash inflow generated
from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas tax paid
Hong Kong profits tax refunded
Overseas tax refunded

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

Investing activities
Additions to fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of

fixed assets
Additions to long-term
investments
Increase in pledged
bank deposits
Translation adjustments

Net cash (outflow)/inflow
before financing activities

Financing activities

Dividends paid

Proceeds from exercise of
employee share options

New long-term bank loans

Repayment of long-term
bank loans

New short-term bank loans

Repayment of short-term
bank loans

Repayment of capital element
of finance lease obligations

Increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents,
end of year

GERERER
2004 2003
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M &E FER FET
KEEECRS
RN TR 26(a) 57,989 94,008
[=Al &IPS 98 150
[EESEIBSS (6,387) (6,699)
ENEERNEH (6,048) (17,398)
2fEHFIE (2,458) (3,831)
EREFBIEN 185 —
2RIZEIIE 415 507
RETHES
RAFE 43,794 66,737
RETE
BERTETEE (47,961) (60,758)
HEBEEE
s A 4,589 534
REIRE 2
- (736)
EIEARITER
2 m (371) (697)
EN AR (1,245) 1,687
(44,988) (59,970)
BMETHA2ES GRE)
RAFE (1,194) 6,767
Bl & 5E B 26(b)
ERE (14,636) (12,320)
AEESTHEBEREZ
WA 4,426 2,517
RITREERZEM 45,240 23,200
EBERERTREEN
(12,270) (149)
IRITEBERZEM 251,457 234,489
BERTEHEN
(242,177) (220,217)
BEURZOZERE
B2 (23,171) (24,604)
8,869 2,916
ReRkBReEEZ
bl 7,675 9,683
FHNzHeRESEE
63,657 53,974
FRz2EEREBESEE
26(d) 71,332 63,657




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZEaRREZEHX

For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BZE _ZTNF=A=+—HIEFE

2004 2003

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Mt &F FET FET

Balance as at 1st April AWM B— He&REE 232,290 187,175

Profit attributable to shareholders B R EAGEF) 57,517 52,260

Translation adjustments E R 25 (418) 2,658
Issue of shares upon exercise of THEEEBEREM

employee share options BITHRG 23 4,426 2,517

Payment of dividends TR E (14,636) (12,320)

Balance as at 31st March MR=ZB=+—H&%E 279,179 232,290




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

1. Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these accounts are set out below:

(a) Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply
with accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants (“HKSA”). They
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except that, as disclosed in the
accounting policies below, long-term
investments are stated at fair value.

Commencing from 1st April, 2003, Starlite
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) have
adopted the revised Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice Number 12 “Income taxes”
(“SSAP 12”) issued by the HKSA, under which
deferred taxation is provided in full on
temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the accounts. In prior year, deferred
taxation was provided in respect of significant
timing differences between profit as computed
for taxation purposes and profit as stated in the
accounts to the extent that a liability or an asset
was expected to be payable or recoverable in
the foreseeable future. The adoption of the
revised SSAP 12 represents a change in
accounting policy, which has no significant
effect on the Group’s results for prior
accounting periods.

(b) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated accounts include the accounts
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The results
of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are consolidated from or to their
effective dates of acquisition or disposal, as
appropriate.

Any significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

TEGHBE
REARERARANEBZGHBENT

Ffr i

(@)

(b)

mEEE
FEREDREFBARGHRAURE
BEMAE(A8)BEf2EHE
BEARE - REDERELRAE
FHERE  HEUTHAHRE 2SR
R RPREBRQAFEEIR-

H-ZZ=FHA—HE  EX&EH
ERAFA([R2F) REKBARA
(ERIAEE]) ERAASEMZE
BIESHERENSE+ 2R (TS5 E
BIZE+ =D TRIGH] - RIBEFHE
BIZE+ 5% WIREREBEDHREE
HEECHERAKRAEZERER
E2HEBE  NEFE  BEEBET
BB R B ot B 2 A B2 RR B AR
RN -—EBERKE  RERB
RAUBRRERINAHTRE Z2EER
BEME - RAKBRTSHENSE
ToRBRE R 2 DHAREE
BESTHHBXBELBEATE -

RERBEEE
REREBEARAREWBLAR 2
RE - BERNRBRHEZHELT

5 HEESRBHEWBENAH
ERAGEERGEEHEENEH
ik o

FEBRERBZERRE REKE
HEREFREIRE R -



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

1.

Principal accounting policies (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the proceeds
of the disposal and the Group’s share of its net
assets together with any unamortised goodwill
or negative goodwill or goodwill/negative
goodwill taken to reserves and which was not
previously charged or recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account and any
related cumulative foreign currency translation
adjustments.

Minority interests represent the interests of
outside shareholders in the results and net
assets of subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the
Company, directly or indirectly, controls more
than one half of the voting power; has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies, to appoint or remove the majority of
the members of the board of directors, or to cast
majority votes at the meetings of the board of
directors.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Contractual joint ventures

A contractual joint venture is an entity
established between the Group and one or
more other parties for a pre-determined period
of time, with the rights and obligations of the
joint venture partners governed by a contract. If
the Group is able to govern and control the
financial and operating policies of the
contractual joint venture so as to obtain
benefits from its activities, such joint venture is
considered as a de facto subsidiary and is
accounted for as a subsidiary.

1.

FEEBUR (H)

(b)

(c)

(d)

FEREEE (H)

HEMBLARMEENES  JIEH
ERSRERAREEEEFEM
EEZER  EREMARBEHER
ERARBERENLERGEBEER
HKHEIANEHE - UREMEE
RN ELAE -

LEBRRESENRRRAGHEL

Ht 8 2 7]
MEBARZEHEAA A EENER
EHRHFEULRERE  EHHESK
REBRREER ZAURRES
ENARZEEN  IRESEERL
ERZHRERENERE -

RARBzEERERKN  RIIERQ
AINRET AR R RERE
(WRB) SR - RATKHBAR 2%
BREUREVRE ZEENE -

BERKERHE
BERELEBAKEEE-TRS
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

1. Principal accounting policies (Cont’d) 1. TESTEBX (&)

(e) Long-term investments (e) RERE
Long-term investments are carried at fair value. RORERHEQAFEEAR - LER
Any changes in the fair value of such ERNVEEZEAZ2BRHEZER
investments and gains and losses on disposal of BEeWamREBENBERYERETA
such investments are recognised in the profit BE*K o
and loss account as they arise.

(f)  Fixed assets and depreciation () EEEEHEFE

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Major expenditures on modifications
and betterments of fixed assets which will
increase their future economic benefits are
capitalised, while expenditures on maintenance
and repairs are expensed when incurred.

Leasehold land is depreciated over the period
of the lease, while other fixed assets are
depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less accumulated impairment losses over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates of depreciation
are as follows:

BEEERMAERRBENER R
HEBBARK BERICEMSRIE
RRQERN D 2 ERFARITHERE
EEE MREREEZHAXIREL
< o

HETHZEEINAERE  MA
fbEEEE R AT AFHAMBEAE
RAERRTREBRSAENE o ff
BEZFRNOT :

Leasehold land 2% to 2.5% T i 2%ZE2.5%

(lease terms) (LA EH)
Buildings 2% to 4% BF 2%F 4%
Machinery 10% to 20% s 10%% 20%
Furniture and equipment 10% to 20% ERRRE 10%% 20%
Motor vehicles 20% "B 20%

The depreciation methods and useful lives are
reviewed periodically to ensure that the
methods and rates of depreciation are
consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from the fixed assets.

Fixed assets held under finance leases are
recorded and depreciated on the same basis as
described above.

The gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets is
the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the then carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit
and loss account.

FERERUEAFHYEEHR
& ERZEFERTERRAEE
BECHAHEBRNEZRN -3 -

HUBRNOEEZBEEEEN L2
BEETHRRTE -

HEEEEEZWERNEBRRHEMN
BREFEREHEEER ZREE
ZEEZEZFENRBHERPER -



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

1. Principal accounting policies (Cont’d) 1. TESTEBX (&)

(g Inventories (g ®E
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and FERRAEETERFEMERZ
net realisable value. Costs, calculated using the BIEE ANBR - AE SR INE T
weighted average of costing, comprise EREZORRE  BEETEREE
materials, direct labour and an appropriate Eefl c EEEEKERAS - TRRF
proportion of production overheads. Net ERRMETT—REE  HIRMESHE
realisable value is determined on the basis of XHFTE -
anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling
expenses.

(h)  Accounts receivable (hy EWERR
Provision is made against accounts receivable FEWERFRRERERTREE - &E
to the extent they are considered to be doubtful. BERANEBWERARDNBREREEE
Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are (nA) BIER -
stated net of such provision, if any.

(i)  Impairment of assets (i) BEERE

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss representing the difference
between the carrying amount and the
recoverable amount of an asset is recognised in
the profit and loss account. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling
price and value in use. The net selling price is
the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset
in an arm’s length transaction less the costs of
the disposal, while value in use is the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to
arise from the continuing use of an asset and
from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss of an asset
recognised in prior years is recorded when
there is an indication that the impairment loss
recognised for the asset no longer exists or has
decreased. The reversal is recorded in the profit
and loss account.

ESHBLENBRBRESLMAEARE
PF-EHEEZREAERFTERE
- EYEEIRESEMNUEZR
EROFETRE HEEFESR
AE s EE - WEEZE (AERE
BR)ENREERTER - JRES
PRFEEEERAEEMERSE
R FEEERATERETZEE
HERSHWARBERE - ERE
BERESEBEERZEERERFRES
REMEENAGENRRRERE
HIRME °

HEHREERENERABFERE
BMAOHE - BELOUNEFERIANE
EREFRINEZREILEED
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

1.

Principal accounting policies (Cont’d)

)

(k)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are reviewed regularly
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the amount of a provision is the present
value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. When the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset
but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
accounts. When a change in the probability of
an outflow occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises
from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent assets are not recognised but are
disclosed in the notes to the accounts when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When
inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

1.

FEEBUR (H)
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B
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

1. Principal accounting policies (Cont’d)

U]

(m)

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
accounts. Taxation rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the outcome of a
transaction can be measured reliably and when
it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group. Revenue is recognised on the following
bases:

(i)  Sales revenue
Sales revenue is recognised on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and title has
passed.

(ii)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

1. FESEBE(#E)

M

(m)

I E B IR
EEBEDFNRAEEENEEREAE
ZHERMBMAERE 2REAEME 2
SEREFZEEBE REERFRH
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

1.

Principal accounting policies (Cont’d)
Employee benefits

(n)

(o)

(p)

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

accrue to

Pension obligations

The Group’s contributions to defined
contribution
expensed as incurred.

retirement schemes are

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to prepare for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Leases

(i)

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the
Group the risks and rewards of ownership
of assets are accounted for as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the inception of the leases at the lower of
the fair value of the leased assets or the
present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the capital and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the
capital balances outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in long-term
liabilities. The finance charges are
charged to the profit and loss account
over the lease periods.

1.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

1.

Principal accounting policies (Cont’d)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Leases (Cont’d)

(i)  Operating leases
Leases where substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets remain
with the leasing company are accounted
for as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the leasing
company are charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over
the lease periods.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the
balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the
cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks, cash investments with a maturity of
three months or less from date of investment,
and bank overdrafts.

Foreign currency translation

Individual companies within the Group
maintain their books and records in the primary
currencies of their respective operations
(“functional currencies”). In the accounts of the
individual companies, transactions in other
currencies during the year are translated into
the respective functional currencies at the
applicable rates of exchange prevailing at the
time of the transactions; monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies are
translated into the respective functional
currencies at the applicable rates of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date. Exchange
gains or losses are dealt with in the profit and
loss accounts of the individual companies.

The Group prepares consolidated accounts in
Hong Kong dollars. For the purpose of
consolidation, assets and liabilities of
subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the applicable rates of
exchange in effect at the balance sheet date;
income and expense items are translated at the
average applicable rates of exchange prevailing
during the year. Exchange differences arising
from such translations are dealt with as
movements of cumulative translation
adjustments.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

1.

Megastar Enterprises Limited and Chrysty Trading
Company Limited are beneficially owned by Ms.
Yeung Chui, a director of the Company.

Principal accounting policies (Cont’d) 1. TESTEBX (&)
(s) Segment reporting (s) 78
In accordance with the Group’s internal BRERAEB2RAMTHHRE - AEH
financial reporting, the Group has determined EREZEBDBERERETERS
that business segments be presented as the B mtESHERBMERRER
primary reporting format and geographical as ERXES -
the secondary reporting format.
Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. ROBMEAEEBELXML - 7 EE
Segment assets consist primarily of fixed assets, EXTZERETEE 78 BURX
inventories, receivables, and operating cash, BEREERS  BfREERBRE -
and exclude long-term investments. Segment TEEEREECEEBEETEBERSS
liabilities comprise operating liabilities and HRIEERIR - EAMRAXBERE
exclude taxation. Capital expenditure comprises EEEEMER -
additions to fixed assets.
In respect of geographical segment reporting, EREESERSE  HEBEDIRRE
sales are based on the destination of shipments/ RATEB M 2 BEMEE - BEE
deliveries of goods. Total assets and capital REAMAXREERABITE -
expenditure are where the assets are located.
Related party transactions 2. BRAEALZRS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has FEBALNEEP L AEERBEEE
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other FE—FHIYE - F 2B REBRET
party or exercise significant influence over the other FERFED ZHRZFRZHFEK
party in making financial and operating decisions. HENZ AT ERABEEAL -
Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant
influence.
Particulars of significant transactions between the REBHEEBAEATBETZIEARSF
Group and related parties are summarised as follows: BT
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FTERT
Operating lease rentals charged XNEXRNEET
by related parties: BEEAL
— Megastar Enterprises — ZRBEBRAA
Limited 43 140
— Chrysty Trading Company —UREESERLT
Limited — 17
43 257

ERAGCEXBRLAARYKEZZBRLA
YHARAESHERLTERESR -



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

2. Related party transactions (Cont’d) 2. FREEATZRS ()
In the opinion of the Company’s directors and the RARESERRLAERZHR-—REK
Group’s management, the above transactions were ERR-REFGRIET  LHEAER
carried out in the usual course of business and on BEEREATIT L ZERER -

normal commercial terms, and in accordance with
the terms of the contracts entered into by the Group
and the related parties.

3. Turnover and revenue 3. EXERERA
The Company is an investment holding company. Its AARN—REZERLF - HXEWE L
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the printing RREORRHELSEDE - ERERAE
and manufacturing of packaging materials, labels and EmRBEREM EERARRAERE :

paper products and environmentally friendly
products. Turnover and revenue consisted of:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
Turnover — Sales revenue EERE —HEWA 693,348 610,767
Other revenue HAb g A
Interest income from bank RITERFEWA
deposits 98 150
Net gain on long-term RERE W= FHE
investments 197 —
Net gain on disposal of HEBREEE < W= FH
fixed assets 3,498 327
Net gain on dissolution of BEHE LRz W s
subsidiaries — 172
3,793 649
Total revenue A 697,141 611,416




Operating profit

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

4., RBEHEA

Operating profit is determined after charging or R nF e MBRHFTATIEE

crediting the following items:

After charging:

Employment costs (including
directors’ emoluments)
(see Note 6)

Operating lease rentals of
premises charged by
— third parties
— related parties (see Note 2)

Provision for bad and doubtful
debts

Provision for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories

Depreciation of fixed assets
— owned assets
— assets held under finance
leases

Net exchange losses

Auditors’ remuneration

After crediting:

Reversal of provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Reversal of provision for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories

Reversal of provision for repair
costs of machinery

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT F#& T
2Bk :
B 8 A A
(BREESHD)
(RKEEe6) 114,193 104,896
HAYMELERY 2
HeXZTF
— $B=F 10,018 9,085
— BEEALT (RHEE2) 43 257
FEWERR R IEREE
— 5,151
= 1,650
BEEEEZITE
— BBEE 28,798 22,396
— DB BEN
BFEECEE 11,106 12,108
EREIEFE 1,918 31
ZEENEN & 1,640 1,174
FEPNE
FEWERARRZRERZ
B mE & 2,071 —
RERFHEEFEEZ
B mE & 5,180 —
MBS IS 2 BB E B
— 4,500




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

5. Finance costs 5. MBEAR
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THERT
Interest on bank loans wholly AREFERTHEEZ
repayable within five years ERFE 4,622 4,169
Interest element of finance leases MBEREYZFE 1,765 2,530
6,387 6,699
6. Employment costs (including directors’ 6. BERKX (BREEEME)
emoluments)
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
Salaries, wages and allowances e ITERER 100,477 91,061
Sales commission and bonus HEMEREA 2,418 3,135
Other employee welfare and ETHMER
benefits 5,996 3,998
Pension costs — defined RIKERA — REHKGE
contribution plans (R FfFE29)
(see Note 29) 6,902 5,402
(Reversal of)/Provision for long REBRKES =z (28 BE
service payments (1,600) 1,300
114,193 104,896
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7.

Directors’ and senior executives’ 7.

emoluments
Details of directors’” emoluments are:

(a)

Fees for executive directors HITEEHRS
Fees for independent BYEHTEEHES
non-executive directors
Other emoluments for HTEEHMHS
executive directors
— Basic salaries and — ERFHFERER
allowances
— Bonus* — TEAL*
— Contributions to — B & HK
pension scheme
& The executive directors are entitled to a

discretionary bonus.

No director waived any emolument during the
year. No incentive payment for joining the
Group or compensation for loss of office was
paid or payable to any director during the year.

Analysis of directors” emoluments by number of
directors and emolument ranges is as follows:

EERERTHRAEMS

(@ EEMEFHFBOT

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
402 402
520 520
9,247 8,036
836 1,038

128 128
11,133 10,124

* ARRHTESAEBHEREZIA -

FAREESRWEAME - TEGLEM
ESXVHNESERBFENALEE 28
SHRERBEREBULZEE -

ESHECEMAHRBEHE 2 MM
T

Executive directors
— HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000
— HK$1,500,001 to
HK$2,000,000
— HK$3,000,001 to
HK$3,500,000

Independent non-executive
directors
— Nil to HK$1,000,000

2004 2003
HITES
— 1,000,001 T E
1,500,00078 J© 1 1
— 1,500,001/ T E
2,000,000 7T 1 1
— 3,000,001 TZE
3,500,00078 JT 2 2
BAUFHTES
— 0Z 1,000,000 7T 2 2
6 6
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7. Directors’ and senior executives’ 7. EERERITHAEMS (F)

emoluments (Cont’d)

(@) Details of directors’ emoluments are: (Cont’d) (@ EBEMEFRUOT @ (&)
In addition, during the year ended 31st March, o BE-ZZEENE=Z/A=+—H
2004, options were granted to executive LLFE  REBESERHME24F 2 BR
directors to subscribe for an aggregate of EstE HITESERTERENS
6,900,000 shares in the Company during the B 1.0778 7T 2 B8 A 2 8 £ 6,900,000
period from 19th August, 2004 to 18th February, RIRG  ITEBHAZZTENFNAT
2007 at HK$1.07 per share, under the New hBZE=ZZZE+F-A+N B Mk
Share Options Scheme as described in Note 24. MrEEME U REFEHEBERES
Directors’” emoluments as disclosed above do not & o

include the benefit of any share options.

(b)  The five individuals whose emoluments were b) BNERSHFALH > O (ZZ2Z=
the highest in the Group for the year include F:0OU)/RERARES  HHEE
four (2003: four) directors, whose emoluments HAME7Q) - BN A K
are reflected in the analysis presented in Note TALTWT :

7(a) above. The emoluments paid/payable to
the remaining individual were as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Basic salaries and allowances BEARFHeRERM 994 1,350
Bonus TEAL 80 206
Contributions to pension scheme &k & fit 5 18 24
1,092 1,580
8. Taxation 8. ®IE
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated REEBEERPNRZRESRE !
profit and loss account represents:
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET THET
Current taxation REEBIE
Hong Kong profits tax EBNEHR 3,741 8,242
Overseas taxation B INBLIE 4,672 2,296
8,413 10,538
Deferred taxation IEERIE
Hong Kong profits tax ERNEH 3,846 1,433
Overseas taxation B INBLIR (801) (265)
3,045 1,168
11,458 11,706




Taxation (Cont’d)

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda
until 2016. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided
at the rate of 17.5% (2003: 16%) on the estimated
assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong
Kong. Overseas taxation was provided by subsidiaries
with operations in Singapore and Mainland China,
based on their estimated assessable profits at the
rates of taxation applicable in those countries.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the profits tax rate in Hong Kong, the home
country of the Group, and the reconciliation is as
follows:

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

Bi1E (&)

AATHEREZE-E- FHILEH#RR
BMERERE  FRENSHOREES
BRORREEEBZMHTTERTERN > &
17.5% (ZBFB=F : 16%) 2B E/EH &
o BN ERESENME R PEAEE
BeHBLAAMEGITTERFTERNIZER
MEBAREBMEER 2EAREELER
& o

BAKEZBRREAENGTE 2B RRRR
AEERERRZBBANEHRBRRAEZ
EREBEEMEE  HERWUT :

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before taxation R i A & R 68,975 63,966
Calculated at a taxation rate of BB E17.5%
17.5% (2003: 16%) (ZZ2E=F 1 16%) 5T & 12,071 10,235
Effect of ge
— different tax rates in other — HBERETEB X
jurisdictions (789) 213
— tax effect of income not — BEARBWAZHEZE
subject to taxation (336) (254)
— tax effect of expenses not — FANB X 2 RELE
deductible for income tax
purposes 663 396
— deferred tax assets not — AERZEEREEE
recognised 1,219 1,496
— utilisation of previously — ERANERER ZIEL
unrecognised deferred tax HEEE
assets (1,050) e
— Effects of changes in tax rate — BxrEg o g (320) (380)
Taxation charge MRz B\ 11,458 11,706
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9. Profit attributable to shareholders 9. REEMEF
The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders BRREEFEEANEEBEARAKRERNE

2% RL2,801,0008 T (B2 =6 :
63,546,000 JT) °

includes a profit of approximately HK$2,801,000
(2003: HK$63,546,000) dealt with in the accounts of
the Company.

10. Dividends 10. RE
Dividends consisted of: REBE :
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT TERT
Interim dividends — HK$0.015 RHRE — BRBE¥1.5
(2003: HK$0.01) per share (Z2Z=F : SRB® L) 6,310 4,149
Proposed final dividends — BIRAHRE — 8RB 2L
HK$0.02 (2003: HK$0.02) (Z22=F  FRAEB2)
per share 8,503 8,326
14,813 12,475
11. Earnings per share 1. BREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the BE-_ZEMNF=A=+—HLEFEER

year ended 31st March, 2004 is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$57,517,000 (2003:
HK$52,260,000) and on the weighted average
number of approximately 419,746,000 shares (2003:
410,581,000 shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31st March, 2004 is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$57,517,000 (2003:
HK$52,260,000) and on the weighted average
number of approximately 422,935,000 shares (2003:
413,718,000 shares) in issue, after adjusting for the
potential dilutive effect in respect of outstanding
employee share options.

EXBIAEBRRELAEZERMNY
57,517,000 T (ZEZF =% : 52,260,000
BT)RERFEACBITRMOMETIIHELN
A 419,746,000 ( = & & = &
410,581,0008%) 5T & o

BE-ZEZNFE=ZRA=1t—HLEEEZE
BEEEANEZFARRELGESENY
57,517,000 T (ZEZF =% : 52,260,000
B RE BT Hﬁﬁzﬁkéﬂu%%ﬁ%ﬁziﬁ
422,935,000 ( = & & = &

413,718,0000%) 5t & ’f[tE',E'JE,\/ET:EE&”ﬁ

ERZERITENBREFLAR -
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12. Fixed assets

(a)

(b)

Movements
Movements of fixed assets (consolidated) were:

12. BIEEE

(@)

2E
BEEE (FRE) 2BBHBUT

Land and Furniture and Motor
buildings ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles Total
T RETF BE  RARRE RE @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TBr TER TER TER
Cost B
As at Tst April, 2003 RZEE=H
A—A 107,804 371,965 30,178 10,901 520,848
Additions nE 3,366 40,823 3,085 1,167 48,441
Transfer LEc (1,062) 1,062 — — -
Disposals i1 (4) (10,805) (20) (736) (11,565)
Translation adjustments 3% 38 % — 2,827 161 85 3,073
As at 31st March, 2004 RZ=ZENF
=A=+-H 110,104 405,872 33,404 11,417 560,797
Accumulated depreciation R 5 7 &
and impairment losses R {E
As at Tst April, 2003 R-ZZT=F
A—AH 11,902 183,200 21,032 7,359 223,493
Provision for the year FERBE 2,165 33,868 2,827 1,044 39,904
Disposals & (4) (9,740) (20) (710) (10,474)
Translation adjustments ~ JE 5 3% = 1,876 155 61 2,092
As at 31st March, 2004 R=ZENEF
=A=+-H 14,063 209,204 23,994 7,754 255,015
Net book value SREFE
As at 31st March, 2004 RZ=ZENF
=A=+-H 96,041 196,668 9,410 3,663 305,782
As at Tst April, 2003 R-ZZBT=F
MA—A 95,902 188,765 9,146 3,542 297,355
Land and buildings (b)y THRIEF
The geographical location and tenure of land THREF 2B REEFH DM
and buildings were: T
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Hong Kong 58 8,787 9,126
Mainland China AR K BE 87,254 86,776
96,041 95,902
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12. Fixed assets (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Land and buildings (Cont’d)

Land and buildings in Hong Kong are held
under medium-term leases expiring in June
2047, on the basis of the rights of extension
provided by the New Territories Leases
(Extension) Ordinance 1988. Land and
buildings in Mainland China are held under
land use rights of 50 years expiring from April
2034 to March 2044.

At 31st March, 2004, land and buildings with a
net book value of approximately
HK$65,487,000 (2003: HK$67,117,000) were
mortgaged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (see Note 30).

Machinery

Machinery with a net book value of
approximately  HK$1,121,000 (2003:
HK$2,510,000) was pledged as collateral for
the Group’s bank facilities (see Note 30).

Finance leases

Certain fixed assets included in Note 12(a)
above are held under finance leases. Details of
these assets were:

12. EE

(b)

(c)

(d)

EE (&)

T RIEF (E)
NREBZLHWREFIIRE—AN
NEFR LY (EE) RFIIREZ
ERERTPPEZAEE RZZE0t
FARAEH - URFBEAREZLIHE
BFRituFERAESEE ABET
F ORIEZNFENAZE-ZTNNE
=BEIHo

R-ZBENF=ZA=+—0 ' REF
BE#65,487,0008 T (Z2E=F :
67,117,000/ J8) 2 & it K& F B{E
AEBERTEREEZHBERF (R
MEEE30) °

25
BRTEFELN1,121,0008 T (Z2E=
& 2,510,000/ T) 2 #28 AIEARE
BRTHEAEEZHEBIRR (B
30) °

MBRY

ERME 2Rz E TEEEETD
RUBRNFE - EHEEZFEN
T

Furniture and Motor

Machinery equipment vehicles Total

e KRARRE RE et

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FExT FE T FE T

Cost AR 91,640 4,451 3,299 99,390
Less: Accumulated B BEHITE

depreciation (27,447) (1,311) (1,692) (30,450)

Net book value BREFE 64,193 3,140 1,607 68,940

Depreciation for the year RNEENE 9,659 885 562 11,106
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13. Long-term investments 13. RHARE
Details of long-term investments (consolidated) were: REBRE (FRa) 2#BW0T :
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THERT
Shares listed in Hong Kong, EHRG  EBRAE
at cost 736 736
Adjustment to quoted market AEEHHEE
value 169 (28)
Quoted market value miZER 905 708
14. Investment in subsidiaries 14. RRB AR ZRE
In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in EARAEEAGRA  REBATZKR
subsidiaries consisted of: EBE
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TERT
Unlisted shares FEMRMH 91,449 91,449
Due from subsidiaries FEWLRE B A B R IE 165,720 182,612
Due to subsidiaries EAMEB R RIE (45,857) (51,443)
211,312 222,618
Less: Accumulated impairment W REtRERE
losses (13,859) (16,337)
197,453 206,281
The outstanding balances with subsidiaries are MEARZEREERBERERR &8
unsecured, non-interest bearing and not repayable REANRTZMERREE -

within the next twelve months.
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RETBAR Z2RE (K)

14. Investment in subsidiaries (Cont’d) 14.

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2004

were:

Name of company

NRAEH

Starlite Cultural
Communications
Limited

EXEBEERAA

Starlite International
Limited

Starlite International
(Holdings) Ltd.

Starlite Printers Holdings
Cook Islands Limited

Starlite Printers (Far East)
Pte. Ltd.

Starlite Printers (Malaysia)
Sdn. Bhd.

Everfar Holdings Limited

Starlite Visual
Communication Limited
(Formerly known as
Acoolc.com Limited)
(JR %8 Acoolc.com
Limited)

Place of
incorporation
and operations
o AR 2
REXmH

Hong Kong
Ei#

British Virgin
Islands

REERRES

British Virgin
Islands

REBERRES

Cook Islands
BNRES

Singapore

IR

Malaysia
BRED

British Virgin
Islands

KBERAES

Hong Kong
B

Issued and
fully paid
share capital
EBRITR
BERRAE

HK$2
28T

USS$1
157

US$2
2ETT

US$200
200E 7T

SGD8,759,396
8,759,396
g T

Rm1,000,000
1,000,00055 7T

US$20,000
20,000% Tt

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000 Tt

R-ZEBEEME=ZA=+—080 > ZZHWEL

AZHENT :

Percentage of equity
interest held
P46 B

B
Indirectly
%

Directly
EE

100% —

100% —

100% —

100% =

100% =

100% =

50% 50%

— 100%

Principal activities

TEER

Inactive

Gk SEES

Inactive

Gk SEES

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Printing of packaging
materials and
production of
paper products and
investment holding

BEMBENR R AR

SERBRERR
Inactive
RABIEE

Investment holding

REER

Production-and
distribution of
licensed products

EERDHEES

e 2 O
REER
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14. Investment in subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Name of company

DRAEH

Star Union Limited

ERERAA

Starlite Consumer
Products, Limited

Starlite Entertainment
(Holdings) Limited

Starlite International
Development Limited

Starlite International
Marketing Services
Limited

Starlite Label Company
Limited
EXBRERLT

Starlite Laser Graphics
Limited
EEFHICERAA

Place of
incorporation
and operations
o AR 2
REXmH

Hong Kong/
Mainland China
BB/ HEAE

British Virgin
Islands

KEBERRES

British Virgin
Islands

KEBERRES

British Virgin
Islands

KBERAHRS

British Virgin
Islands

KBERARS

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

14

Issued and
fully paid
share capital
EBRITR
BERRAE

HK$2
28T

USS$1
157

USS$1
157

USS$1
1%7

US$1
EH

HK$950,000
ordinary
950,000 T
EERO
HK$50,000
non-voting
deferred (ii)
50,000 7T
BRE

IR FE BB (i)

HK$3,230,000
ordinary
3,230,000 T
EBRHD
HK$170,000
non-voting
deferred (ii)
170,0007% 7T
BRE

IR E BR A7 (i)

. REEBAR 2R E (B)

Percentage of equity
interest held
P46 B

B
Indirectly
%

Directly
EE

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

Principal activities

TEER

Property holding
BRUF

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Procurement agency

REAERS

Procurement agency

REAERY

Inactive

(G FEES

Provision of design
and colour
separation services

RHRTR
2 ERH%
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14. Investment in subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation
and operations

Name of company B A 2

ALIEL REXmH

Starlite Management Hong Kong
Services Limited 58

Starlite Packaging British Virgin
Technology Islands
Consultancy Limited ABERMRES

Starlite Development Hong Kong
(China) Limited Ei#

EXEBR (FE)ARLH

Starlite Paper Products Hong Kong/
Limited Mainland China

ERAmBERAA BB/

SN

Starlite Printers Limited Hong Kong

EXERBRAT B

Starlite Printers HK British Virgin
Holdings (BVI) Limited Islands

KBEBAHES

14. RIFB AR 2 RE (&)

Issued and
fully paid
share capital
EBRITR
BERRAE

HK$200
20078 7T

USS$1
157

HK$200
20078 7T

HK$1,738,000
ordinary
1,738,000 7T
ZER O
HK$262,000
non-voting
deferred (ii)
262,00078 7T
BRE

IR FE B D (i)

HK$2,700,000
ordinary

2,700,000 7T
ZBER®D

HK$2,300,000
non-voting
deferred (ii)
2,300,000 7T
BREE

i SE BR 42 (i)

US$1
EH

Directly

Percentage of equity
interest held
P46 B

B
Indirectly

BE# LF:3

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

Principal activities

TEER

Provision of
management
services

REEERS

Holding of trade and
service marks

BREZRBEBR

Trading of paper
products

RERMES

Production of paper
products

BmEE

Printing and trading
of packaging
materials

BEMBEDRRE S

Investment holding

REZRK
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14. RIFB AR 2 RE (&)

14. Investment in subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid Percentage of equity
and operations share capital interest held
Name of company B A 2 BRITR P 4 B 18 Principal activities
DRAEH REXHE BERE BO TEER
Directly  Indirectly
BE# LF:3
Starlite Printers, Inc. United States of US$1 — 100% Inactive
America (EY R #EIE %
ES
Starlite Printers (China) British Virgin Islands US$100 — 100% Investment holding
Limited RBEBZEE  100XT%T REERKR
Starlite Printers (Shenzhen)  Mainland China US$8,000,000 — 100%  Printing of packaging
Co., Ltd. (i) B KR 8,000,000 7T materials and
EXENR (RIN) production of
BRAF) paper products
BEMEER K
BEmEE
Starlite Printers (Suzhou) ~ Mainland China US$9,544,489 — 100%  Printing of packaging
Co., Ltd. (i) AR K B 9,544,489% TT materials and
ENENR (EM) production of
BRAFG) paper products
BEMBER K
BmEE
Starlite Productions Limited  Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 — 100% Inactive
EXAIERRAT Ei# 3,000,000 7t CE- S
Starlite Productions (BVI)  British Virgin Islands US$256,420 — 100%  Investment holding
Limited REEMRES 2564207 REEZEK
Starlite Productions British Virgin Islands US$1 — 100%  Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited RBERARES EY REZR
Shenzhen Xiangguangmei  Mainland China RMB4,200,000 — 90% Inactive
Gifts Co., Ltd. (i) eil=PN 4,200,000A R # fA#AE R
RINEXERR
BRAR)
Guangzhou Starlite Mainland China US$6,000,000 — 100%  Production of

Environmental Friendly

Center, Limited (i)
EMNEHRRF O
BR2DF)

R A RE

6,000,000 7T

environmentally
friendly and other
paper products

TERRRHEMCKE
Em
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14. RIFB AR 2 RE (&)

14. Investment in subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid Percentage of equity
and operations share capital interest held
Name of company B A 2 BRITR P 4 B 18 Principal activities
ALIEL REXmH BERRAE Bk TEXH
Directly  Indirectly
BEE e 4
Greenworks International ~ Hong Kong HK$2 — 100%  Investment holding
Limited 58 28T and trading of
FeIRERBRAF environmentally
friendly and other
paper products
REEZRRERK
Rt EERES
Shaoguan Fortune Mainland China US$900,000 — 100% Inactive
Creative Industries LEPNES 900,000% 7T R HEIE 3%

Company Limited
HEAMZRARIR
BRAF

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

None

All subsidiaries incorporated in Mainland China except
for Guangzhou Starlite Environmental Friendly Center,
Limited and Shenzhen Xiangguangmei Gifts Co., Ltd. are
wholly foreign owned companies to be operated for 50
years up to 2042 to 2044. Guangzhou Starlite
Environmental Friendly Center, Limited is a contractual
joint venture established in Mainland China to be
operated for 50 years up to 2044. Under the joint
venture agreement, the joint venture partner is entitled to
a pre-determined fee and is not entitled to share any
profit or required to bear any loss of the joint venture.
Shenzhen Xiangguangmei Gifts Co., Ltd. is an equity
joint venture established in Mainland China to be
operated for 20 years up to 2017.

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the
Group. These shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends unless the net profit of the relevant
company exceeds HK$50,000,000,000 and are not
entitled to any distributions upon winding up unless a
sum of HK$50,000,000,000 has been distributed by the
relevant company to the holders of its ordinary shares.

of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue

at any time during the year ended 31st March, 2004.

MEE -

(i) BREMEXRRFOLERADRRYIEHRE
RRAERATIN 1R KRBERK 22 3B
BARYANEZERE  KEFEHAT+
FOHEE_TN_FZ_ZTWMFI - BEM
EXBRBRPOERDBADEFRBEKRERLZ
EEEELE  KEFHA+E HEEZT
MEOESLE - RIBSEHE  SEBEUTE
B-EBTEAZHE  BHEEIEEED
(¥ MBAREEEAEE - FIEXE
ERERAADNEPERERLIZEGERLE
¥ KEFEH_F+E HE-FT—tF-

HEBREZRELRHUIFARETEES
HERPAEBRERE  BRIEBBATZE&R
#3i850,000,000,0008 T » BEIFE AERE
ZERE  MEBAREEN  TEEZE
DK BREBBEATDBZERBERES
2 7k E F)50,000,000,000% TT ©

(ii)

LEFRBNRBARARBE _—ZTTNF=A
ST -RLEFEREMSEHIEESHRTZ
BEEX -
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15. Inventories 15. #&
Inventories (consolidated) consisted of: 78 (&FE) 8%
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THERT
Raw materials R 34,688 29,574
Work-in-progress 8 14,789 13,162
Finished goods K@ 15,205 16,148
64,682 58,884
Less: Provision for obsolete and W RERFHEHFERB
slow-moving inventories (5,268) (10,704)
59,414 48,180
Certain inventories were held under trust receipts BETHEEDUEERBRITERAIRNZH
bank loan arrangements (see Note 18). #HB (RKM18) °
16. Accounts and bills receivable 16. BEREREKRE
The Group grants to its customers credit terms EEATEEEEHNR -—RA/30KXREI20
generally ranging from 30 to 120 days. RAE o
The aging analysis of accounts and bills receivable FRRERRRE (FRE) 2RESHTWT ¢
(consolidated) is as follows:
2004 2003
HK$/000 HK$/000
TER TERT
0 to 90 days 0E 90K 100,435 69,822
91 to 180 days 91&2180K 15,007 12,810
181 to 365 days 1812 365K 11,463 8,767
Over 365 days B 365K 2,814 4,759
129,719 96,158
Less: Provision for bad and o BWERRRIBREE
doubtful debts (10,719) (17,064)
119,000 79,094
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17.

18.

Bank deposits 17. |ITEXK
As at 31st March, 2004, bank deposits (consolidated) R-ZBZNE=RA=+—R0 ' KEF=ZA
of approximately HK$5,832,000 (2003: RBHRTEFER(FE) 855,832,000/ T
HK$7,779,000) were denominated in Chinese (ZEBEZE =% :7,779,00087T) » EAEKE
Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible currency TSR TREARLG  ARBHIEBRRE
in the international market and its exchange rate is HPAZEARANBBRGEE -
determined by the Government of the People’s
Republic of China.
As at 31st March, 2004, bank deposits (consolidated) RZBENEF=A=+—0 ' XEEZH
of approximately HK$11,922,000 (2003: TER (BRE)#11,922,0008 T (ZEE=
HK$11,551,000) were pledged as collateral of the £ 111,551,000/ 7T) B IR MR IRIT LUIRER
Groups’ banking facilities (see Note 30). REBEZRITEER (RMFE30)
Short-term bank borrowings 18. BHIRITER
Short-term bank borrowings (consolidated) consisted BHRITER (FRa) 8%
of:
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Trust receipts bank loans FRBBRITER 23,488 24,203
Other short-term bank loans HuEBHEBRTER 53,959 43,964
Long-term bank loans, REBITER
current portion (Note 21) BNEAER 11 (R B EE21) 13,781 5,960
91,228 74,127

Short-term bank borrowings bear interest at rates
ranging from 1.8% to 7.0% per annum (2003: 3.6%
to 7.0% per annum). Refer to Note 30 for details of
the Group’s banking facilities.

EHRITERFEERB1.8%E7.0%TE
(ZBE=ZF . FERAEZONET.0%T
%) - EEAEERTEERFESE  RHEE
30
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19. Finance lease obligations 19. BBRNEH
Details of finance lease obligations, net of future MBRNER  RFRRUBER (FE)
finance charges, (consolidated) were: ZAOMWT :
2004 2003
HK$/000 HK$/000
FTERT TR
Total minimum lease payments MBRORERER :
under finance leases
— not exceeding one year — THBEF 18,625 25,292
— more than one year and not — BBREFERBBWEF
exceeding two years 9,552 18,653
— more than two years and not — BBMFETHEBRESF
exceeding five years 6,139 15,727
34,316 59,672
Less: Future finance charges R RMBEER (1,223) (3,888)
33,093 55,784
Analysis as: DWWMT :
The present value of obligations MBRZYEBHNRE :
under finance leases
— not exceeding one year — FEBEBEF 17,731 22,986
— more than one year and not — BBEFETEEMF
exceeding two years 9,296 17,530
— more than two years and not — BBMFETEBRSF
exceeding five years 6,066 15,268
33,093 55,784
Less: Amounts payable within B ARBEBEZEFR
one year included under BEENE
current liabilities (17,731) (22,986)
15,362 32,798
20. Accounts and bills payable 200 BERNERRRERE
The aging analysis of accounts and bills payable BRERREE (G REIHWT
(consolidated) is as follows:
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
0 to 90 days 0Z290K 82,105 66,795
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 2,512 2,583
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 2,220 1,207
Over 365 days #BiB365K 123 2,695
86,960 73,280
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21. Long-term bank loans 21. RPBITER
Details of long-term bank loans (consolidated) were: RBRTER(HS) 2FBUOT ¢
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$"000
THERT TR
Amounts repayable within EEH
a period
— not exceeding one year — FBEBEF 13,781 5,960
— more than one year but not — BBEFETEEMF
exceeding two years 13,695 5,971
— more than two years but not — BBMFETEBRSF
exceeding five years 29,110 11,685
56,586 23,616
Less: Amounts repayable within BN ARBEBEZEFR
one year included under AEERE (RME18)
current liabilities (see Note 18) (13,781) (5,960)
42,805 17,656
Long-term bank loans bear interest at rates ranging RERITER 7‘% ‘|'mﬁ/r F FERB1.8%
from 1.8% to 7.0% per annum (2003: 3.6% to 7.0% £7.0%F%E (= =F FREB3.6%
per annum). Refer to Note 30 for details of the £27.0%1E) o ﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁlfﬁﬁ EER
Group’s banking facilities. B RME30e
22. Deferred taxation 22, EREBLIH
Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary BEERBEDANBEEERIEBE17.5%
differences under the liability method using a (Z2B=F 1 16%) RETREFE2HE
principal taxation rate of 17.5% (2003: 16%). & e
Movements of deferred tax liabilities (consolidated) EERIE (RE) 22BFBENOT
were:
HK$’000
TR
At 1st April 2002 R-ZZBZZ-FMA—H (12,424)
Deferred taxation charged to RESRNR ZELRE
profit and loss account (1,168)
Exchange difference arising on EREER
translation (157)
At 31st March 2003 R=ZFZE=F=ZR=+—H (13,749)
Deferred taxation charged to RESXRNRZELEHRE
profit and loss account (3,045)
Exchange difference arising on ERER
translation (154)
At 31st March 2004 R-ZZEME=A=1+—H (16,948)
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22. Deferred taxation (Cont’d) 22, EEBE ()
As at 31st March, 2004, the Group had an RZBENEF=ZA=+—0 ' XEEEX
unprovided deferred tax assets of approximately BEIEERIREER29,642,000/8 7T (=
HK$29,642,000 (2003: HK$37,138,000), primarily TE=4F 137,138,000 ) r TERBR
representing the tax effect of cumulative tax losses AREFE(AZEENBHRERS 28
(subject to agreement by relevant tax authorities), of HEE  H'6,2140008 T (ZEE=
which approximately HK$6,214,000 (2003: 113,121,000/ 7T) Al & ESF - BREE A
HK$13,121,000) can be carried forward for 5 years, DEREA A ZE o
while the balance can be carried forward indefinitely.
The movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) prior EEHEBEEE (BB 288 (HE—-8
to offsetting of balances within the same entity and BREHREZARIKEN) WNT -
same taxation jurisdiction is as follows:
Net deferred
tax assets/
General ~ Cumulative  Accelerated (liabilities)
provisions tax losses  depreciation ELEHE
—REHE RAREAER MEFRE EE(8F)
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TAR TERT TERT TERT

At 1st April, 2002 R-ZZZ2-FWA—H 2,293 — (14,717) (12,424)
Credited/(Charged) to profit REZFRRF A/ (K)

and loss account 683 186 (2,037) (1,168)
Exchange difference arising EH ZE

on translation — — (157) (157)
At 31st March, 2003 R=ZZ=%=A=t-H 2,976 186 (16,911) (13,749)
Charged to profit and REZRPHRK

loss account (1,628) (186) (1,231) (3,045)
Exchange difference arising EXEZE

on translation 8 — (162) (154)
At 31st March, 2004 R-ZZNF=A=1+-~H 1,356 — (18,304) (16,948)
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23.

24.

Share capital 23. BR&
2004 2003
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
RGEE HiE &8 HE
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
TR THERT TR FTER
Authorised: EE R A
Ordinary shares of BREE0IETT
HK$0.1 each ZELER 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRMR
Ordinary shares of BREE0IET
HK$0.1 each: ZEBR
Beginning of year F9 415,975 41,597 401,801 40,180
Issue of shares upon exercise RiTEBREMRT
of share options (see Note 24) 2B (R KE24) 9,200 920 14,174 1,417
End of year F# 425,175 42,517 415,975 41,597
During the year ended 31st March, 2004, certain BE-ZZENF=A=1+—HLEFER
employee share options were exercised to subscribe {E ETESNOBRERE9,200,000) (=
for 9,200,000 shares (2003: 14,174,000 shares) of the ZZ=F 114,174,0008) KA TR - 2

Company at an aggregated consideration of
approximately HK$4,426,000 (2003: HK$2,517,000).

Employee share options

Effective from September 2002, the Company has
adopted a new employee share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”) to replace the old
employee share option scheme adopted in 1993 (the
“Old Share Option Scheme”). Under the New Share
Option Scheme, the Company may grant options to
employees (including executive directors of the
Company) to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value
of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time excluding for this purpose any shares issued
on the exercise of options. The exercise price will be
determined by the Company’s board of directors and
shall at least be the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the
options, (ii) an average closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options, and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares of HK$0.1 each. All options granted under the
Old Share Option Scheme will continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the rules of the
Old Share Option Scheme.

24.

KB A 44260008 T (ZEE = F :
2,517,000 7T) °

EBEBRE

BE-ZZ-FhAE FRACKMAHE
SRRESE ([FHr8)) BAUARE AN
SERMCEREBRESS (TER
gl  -REFAEBLXLATBMET (BIF
ARBZHATES) RHBRENZBALQ
ARG MARTZROSKRSZSH/ELF
THREBITRD Z230%  BRFERITE
BREMBOTZRD -ABEHESSE

B EFAAERATZEZESE © )R
REBHROD2WHE  (IRONBER

& BHAEEEEA 2RO FHKRTE

RGigmzHE (BIEKR0.1ERT) - RiE
BT EREEHENEECBE
BREDEEERRTRBEEGREERT
ﬁ °
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24.

Employee share options (Cont’d)
Movements of employee share options during the
year ended 31st March, 2004 were:

24, EEBRRE (B
BE-—ZENE=-A=1+—-HLEFEERZ
EEBRESESHUT :

Number of shares

BH®AE
Subscription Granted  Exercised Lapsed
price Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period per share of year the year the year the year year
R AH TREEE SRABE F4 FRARE FRTE FREK 8
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
TR Tk TR’ TR’ TR
Old Share Option Scheme
ERRE
10th September, 1997 11th March, 1998 to HK$0.69 4,214 - - = 4,214
9th September, 2007
—-AAtERRTH “AMANFZB+-HE 0.69/8 7T
“EEtENARA
11th November, 1997 4th May, 1998 to HK$0.34 1,600 — (1,600) — —
3rd November, 2007
—-AhtE+-A+-A —“AANFEAMBE 03487
“EZtE+-A=H
28th August, 2001 28th February, 2002 to HK$0.15 650 — (650) — —
27th August, 2006
ZEE2-FAAZ+NAH ZEE-F-AZ+ABE 015ER
“EEXRENAZTLA
New Share Option Scheme
HERESD
10th January, 2003 10th July, 2003 to HK$0.53 5,250 — (4,450) (180) 620
9th January, 2006
—ERE=F-ATH “ZZ=FtLATHE 0.53% 7T
Z2EXE-ANB
17th January, 2003 17th July, 2003 to HK$0.57 3,000 S (2,500) o 500
16th January, 2006
“RE=F-AttH “EE=FtATtAE 05787
“EEXRE-At+XA
6th February, 2004 6th August, 2004 to HK$0.93 - 4,270 - = 4,270
5th February, 2007
“EEMEZARA “RENENAARE 0.93& 7T
“EEtF_REA
19th February, 2004 19th August, 2004 to HK$1.07 — 6,900 — — 6,900
18th February, 2007
“EEMF-AtTNA “EENFENATNAE 10787
“EZEE-A+NA
14,714 11,170 (9,200) (180) 16,504
Note: Hiat -
(i) During the year ended 31st March, 2004, certain () BE-ZTWUF=ZA=1+-HLFER &

B 1T 88 % #£ 52 88 9,200,0008% &= 2 7] i%
7 BRELNE4,426,0008 7T - HITHER
BREMBEITZRAZ2HELENS
7,394,70058 7T °

employee share options were exercised to subscribe for
9,200,000 shares of the Company at an aggregated
consideration of approximately HK$4,426,000. The
aggregated market value of the shares issued upon
exercise of these share options amounted to
approximately HK$7,394,700.
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25. Reserves 25. f#&
Movements were: RBEE2FBAOT ¢
Cumulative
translation
Share Capital adjustments Retained  Proposed
premium reserve 2% profits  dividends Total
ROEE ExRE  ERS#E  REEN BRRE B

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TERT TERT TERT TERT TR

Consolidated TE
As at 1st April, 2002 R-ZBEZE-FNAE—AH 96,362 1,169 (4,849) 46,142 8,171 146,995
Exercise of employee TRESBRE

share options 1,100 = = = = 1,100
Profit attributable to B R B R

shareholders - - - 52,260 - 52,260
Proposed dividends BRRE = = = (12,475) 12,475 —
Dividends paid XRKRE — - - - (12,320)  (12,320)
Translation adjustments EHAE — — 2,658 — = 2,658
As at 31st March, 2003 R-BE=f=A=1+-H 97,462 1,169 (2,191) 85,927 8,326 190,693
Exercise of employee TREEEBRE

share options 3,506 - - - - 3,506
Profit attributable to FR R B AL R R

shareholders - = = 57,517 = 57,517
Proposed dividends BRERE — - — (14,813) 14,813 =
Dividends paid XHRE — - - — (14,636)  (14,636)
Translation adjustments ERRE = = (418) — — (418)
As at 31st March, 2004 RZEENE=A=+—H 100,968 1,169 (2,609) 128,631 8,503 236,662
Company AT
As at st April, 2002 RZEZE_ENA-A 96,362 520 — 7,419 8,171 112,472
Exercise of employee TREEESBRE

share options 1,100 = = = = 1,100
Profit attributable to R R AL & R

shareholders = = = 63,546 = 63,546
Proposed dividends BRRE = — — (12,475) 12,475 =
Dividends paid XHKRE = - - — (12,320)  (12,320)
As at 31st March, 2003 R-ZEE=F=A=t+-H 97,462 520 = 58,490 8,326 164,798
Exercise of employee TRESBRE

share options 3,506 = = = = 3,506
Profit attributable to R R B 5 R

shareholders = - - 2,801 - 2,801
Proposed dividends BRRE 25 - — (14,813) 14,813 =
Dividends paid XRKRE - = = — (14,636)  (14,636)
As at 31st March, 2004 R-ZZZEME=A=+—H 100,968 520 = 46,478 8,503 156,469
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26. Notes to the consolidated cash flow 26. EBREREXRMTE
statement
(a)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net (@) BBAGANELEERKRESRANFRE
cash inflow generated from operations: ZH R
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation RR B Al e A 68,975 63,966
Interest income F B WA (98) (150)
Interest expense FE X H 6,387 6,699
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEEEZIE 39,904 34,504
Net gain on disposal of HEBRTEEREZ
fixed assets &= e 0] (3,498) (327)
Net gain on dissolution of i QN RN Bl G
subsidiaries — (172)
(Gain)/Loss on long-term REI®RE (h&x) Bk
investments (197) 28
Increase in inventories FEE M (11,234) (18,480)
Increase in accounts and RS R ZEEEm
bills receivable (39,906) (9,342)
Increase in prepayments and BNFIERREEM
deposits (5,443) (581)
Increase in accounts and ENERREEIE M
bills payable 13,680 14,167
(Decrease)/Increase in BB EREMENRK
accruals and other CRL2) /& hn
payables (10,581) 3,696
Net cash inflow generated REEECRERANTH
from operations 57,989 94,008




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BRH KizE

26. Notes to the consolidated cash flow 26. RERERERWTE ()
statement (Cont’d)
(b)  Analysis of changes in financing: b)) BMEBRSHINAOT :
Short-term
bank loans
(including
trust receipts
Share capital bank loans)
and share Long-term JEHR1T  Finance lease
premium bank loans EX(BE obligations
BRAER &H ERBE Bt %
RO EE RITER RITER) ROEK
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER T TET TET
As at Tst April, 2002 RZZZEZEMA-H 136,542 565 53,895 48,061
Issue of shares upon exercise TREBREMmRT
of employee share options 2R % 2,517 = = =
New bank loans HRRITEK — 23,200 234,489 —
Repayment of bank loans EBERTER — (149) (220,217) —
New finance leases HIEMBRA
— current year additions of — AEERE
machinery and equipment BERRE = — - 30,458
— prior year additions of — UEEERE
machinery and equipment BERRE = — - 1,869
Repayment of capital element BEWKRN
of finance lease obligations xEHa = — — (24,604)
As at 31st March, 2003 RZZE=F
=A=+-H 139,059 23,616 68,167 55,784
Issue of shares upon exercise TEEEBREM
of employee share options BANKRS 4,426 = = =
New bank loans HRBITENK — 45,240 251,457 —
Repayment of bank loans BERTER — (12,270) (242,177) —
New finance leases HBMBRN — — — 480
Repayment of capital element BENBENZ
of finance lease obligations & 7 = = = (23,171)
As at 31st March, 2004 R-ZZZNEF
=B=+-8H 143,485 56,586 77,447 33,093
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26. Notes to the consolidated cash flow 26. FERETHRERMFE ()
statement (Cont’d)
() Major non-cash transactions: € FEFREXRF:
During the year, the Group financed additions FR AEBUFTBERAOH
to machinery and equipment amounting to 480,000 T (= & & = :
approximately ~ HK$480,000  (2003: 30,458,000/ 7T) RERFEHBR
HK$30,458,000) by new finance leases. B
(d)  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents: d RERREZEIN
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FERT
Cash and other bank deposits BeREMBITER 71,332 63,657
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27. Segment information 27. 2EEH
(@) Primary segment @ ETE9HE
The Company is an investment holding KRB —REEZRLF - HXEWELQ
company. lIts subsidiaries are principally BN RBEELEME EBRRASE
engaged in the printing and manufacturing of EmMRBRREM BREBERIOFOT :

packaging materials, labels and paper products
and environmentally friendly products. Analysis
by business segment is as follows:

2004
Packaging
materials,
labels and Environ-
paper products mentally
BENH - friendly
BER products  Elimination Total
RERE BREM HH #t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT TET TR THET
Turnover EXE
— External —HEZEEF 620,570 72,778 = 693,348
— Inter-segment — BEBEZXS 22,220 9,212 (31,432) -
642,790 81,990 (31,432) 693,348
Operating results ggRA
Segment results TEXE 80,310 6,087 86,397
Unallocated expenses AOBEFMX (11,133)
Interest income FEWA 98
Interest expense FEXH (6,387)
Taxation BE (11,458)
Profit attributable to IR 3R P& 1 )% R
shareholders 57,517
Other information Hib&#
Segment assets PEEE 530,174 59,868 590,042
Unallocated assets AOBEE 905
Total assets WERE 590,947
Segment liabilities PHER 271,269 16,893 288,162
Unallocated liabilities APBREE 23,606
Total liabilities BeE 311,768
Capital expenditure BEREY 46,666 1,775 48,441
Depreciation of BTEEZ
fixed assets e 37,305 2,599 39,904
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27. 2 EEHR (&)

27. Segment information (Cont’d)

(@ Primary segment (Cont’d) (@ FEHE (&)
2003
Packaging
materials,
labels and Environ-
paper products mentally
BERMH - friendly
BER products  Elimination Total
REHM RREM 15 85 ast
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TR TR TR
Turnover EXE
— External — B=EEF 575,562 35,205 — 610,767
— Inter-segment — BEBEZXS 6,182 2,346 (8,528) _
581,744 37,551 (8,528) 610,767
Operating results ggRA
Segment results DEXAE 82,837 (2,198) 80,639
Unallocated expenses AoBEETH (10,124)
Interest income WA 150
Interest expense FEXH (6,699)
Taxation B (11,706)
Profit attributable to PR 3R & 4 )4 R
shareholders 52,260
Other information Hib &R
Segment assets TEEE 461,083 52,448 513,531
Unallocated assets AOBEE 708
Total assets BWEE 514,239
Segment liabilities PHEER 246,215 19,289 265,504
Unallocated liabilities rAoRERE 16,445
Total liabilities BERE 281,949
Capital expenditure BEARAX 90,063 1,153 91,216
Depreciation of EEEEZITE
fixed assets 32,001 2,503 34,504
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27. Segment information (Cont’d) 27. 2EEH (&)
(b) Secondary segment b)) XREDHE
Analysis by geographical location is as follows: RBE D 2 EESMWT ¢
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Results E
Turnover* ES N
— Hong Kong and Mainland China — BBRPEKE 342,007 294,084
— Singapore — Fbnk 76,235 77,778
— United States of America — %H 225,887 196,148
— Others — Hftb 49,219 42,757
693,348 610,767
Profit attributable to shareholders PR 3R FE A& ) A
— Hong Kong and Mainland China — BBRPEKRE 35,211 26,378
— Singapore — FhnR 4,671 4,692
— United States of America — XH 14,547 17,507
— Others — Hth 3,088 3,683
57,517 52,260
Assets BE
Hong Kong and Mainland China BB R PEARE 528,772 448,007
Singapore 3 hn 3 62,175 66,232
590,947 514,239
Capital expenditure BEAREX
Hong Kong and Mainland China EFBRHPEKE 48,169 90,759
Singapore 03 272 457
48,441 91,216
& Turnover by geographical location is determined i UitEE o 2 EXE DREEMNEZR
on the basis of the destination of shipments/ Y 3 1 R E ©
deliveries of merchandise.
There are no material sales between the MBS T LRELES AE o

geographical segments.
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28. Commitments and contingent liabilities 28. RERAREE
(@) Capital commitments (@) BEAXFEE
Capital commitments, which were authorised EERCITNERNEE  HoHu
and contracted for, were: I

Consolidated

wRE

2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT THERT

Land and buildings THRETF 6,360 —
Machinery s 24,396 22,340
Equipment B3 — 771
30,756 23,111

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) EEZENEIE
The Group had lease commitments in respect of AEBRBZODTAZHEHAYE
rented premises under various non-cancellable EEZAHR (BHRE-ZT—=F+
operating lease agreements extending to BYFABEZHREINOT :

October 2013. The total commitments payable
are analysed as follows:

Consolidated

Re
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTHET
Amounts payable EER
— within one year — EFUR 8,797 7,129
— within two years and five years — WEZEREFR 11,008 10,880
— over five years — HFULE 11,378 12,209
31,183 30,218
(c) Other commitments (c) HfbAiE
The total pre-determined fee payable to the ENEMEXARRPLERQAAZE
joint venture partner of Guangzhou Starlite BRI B R H 18,641,000% T
Environmental Friendly Center, Limited for 50 (ZZBE=%:18,776,00087T) ' B
years up to 2044 amounted to approximately E-EMOF > EHE+F (R
HK$18,641,000 (2003: HK$18,776,000) (see 14) o
Note 14).
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28.

29.

Commitments and contingent liabilities

(Cont’d)

(d) Contingent liabilities
As at 31st March, 2004, the Company provided
guarantees in respect of banking facilities of its
subsidiaries amounted to approximately
HK$333,000,000 (2003: HK$379,185,000). The
amount of facilities utilised by the subsidiaries
as at 31st March, 2004 amounted to
HK$135,597,000 (2003: HK$108,701,000).

Pension schemes

The group companies operate in Hong Kong have
participated in two Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes (“the MPF Schemes”), each of which is a
defined contribution scheme managed by
independent trustees. Monthly contributions are
made to the MPF Schemes based on 5% of the
employees’ relevant income as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Both
the Group’s and the employees’ contributions are
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month and
thereafter contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the group companies operating in Mainland
China contribute to state-sponsored retirement plans
for their employees. The employees contribute
approximately 5% to 11% of their basic salaries,
while the group companies contribute approximately
8% to 24% of the basic salaries of their employees
and have no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Singapore,
the group company operates in Singapore contributes
to the Central Provident Fund, a statutory pension
scheme. The group company and its employees
contribute 20% and 13% of the basic salaries of the
employees, respectively. The total of the employer’s
and employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of SGD5,500.

28.

29.

AERIARKE (H)

d) HAAEE
R-BENEF=A=+—H A2
METHB AR MERTREMRMH
A RIERE 333,000,000 T (ZEF
=% :379,185,00087T) - R=FEE
NE=A=+—HAEZMBLARACHA
ZRITIEEEH135,597,000/8 T (=
FE =4 :108,701,000/8 7T) °

RikEcHE
FEARKEREBEER 2 AAC D2
MEHAMESBEMEBLETAEEZ
REMKBFHEIEETE ((BEE
g2 SRAHZRAEERBEALR (ZiEH
HABETERPIZER) 25% °c MAE
EREEMHRETA 2 LRI ZH1,0008
T BBEROEREIBBEEMRN -

REBEPBEKREER AEERTFEKESR
EBeNAAERBERL —BARER-RL
HEREHWERAESHE BT 2HKE
REXFHFEH%E11% MAKELTZ
HRERZEEERFHEN8%E24% "
BREEMRTN  ZARARERORASH
RERKEBAMS AL EEAEME
ff - ZEHRBARENERREF EIRIES
RAREENFRARKESERE -

REFMBER - AEBERIF B £
ZORBERRE—EREPROABEESH
EEERESTE > ZRAREESZHRK
OB AZEERAREF S 220%K13% °
AEERESEHAMHKEAZ ERAS,500%
T °
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. RIREEHE ()

29. Pension schemes (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31st March, 2004, the
aggregate amount of the Group’s contributions to the
aforementioned pension schemes was approximately
HK$6,902,000 (2003: HK$5,402,000). As at 31st
March, 2004, forfeited contributions available for
reducing the Group’s employer contribution payable
in future periods amounted to approximately
HK$33,000 (2003: HK$74,000).

BE-ZZENF=A=+—HLEFER
AEEFHz LRERAKRESTTEEHROA
6902000/§75(—='=_£ﬁ 5,402,00058
L) cRZEENE=A=+—H  AAE
m&m%m%u NMZOadHEMREER
33,000 (ZEZE=F : 74,0008 T) °

30. Banking facilities and pledge of assets 30. RITEEEREERF

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group had aggregate REZZBEONF=ZA=+—-H  XEEER

banking facilities of approximately HK$397,575,000 MEX BERREIRERRITAES

(2003: HK$375,404,000) for overdrafts, loans, trade RITEE#HENH397,575,0008 T (=&

financing and bank guarantees. Unused facilities as =4 @ 375,404,000/ 7T) o KA B 5K

at the same date amounted to approximately B A ZIRITIEEEE#231,228,00058 7T (=

HK$231,228,000 (2003: HK$266,306,000). These TET=F 1 266,306,00087T) ° LERTT

facilities were secured by: FEEZEANOT :

() mortgages over the Group’s land and buildings () TEBLHREFZRE  HEEDFE
with a net book value of approximately # 565,487, OOOI%E(—?%ZQE
HK$65,487,000 (2003: HK$67,117,000) (Note 67,117,00058 7T) (R HMzE12(b) 5
12(b));

(i) pledges of the Group’s machinery with a net (i) AEEESEB2EE  REFED
book value of approximately HK$1,121,000 1,121,000 Tt (Z & & = §F
(2003: HK$2,510,000) (Note 12(c)); 2,510,00058 7T) (REE12(0)

(iii) pledges of the Group’s bank deposits of (i) AEEEER2BRITERLAE
approximately HK$11,922,000 (2003: 11,922,000 T (Z BB T = F
HK$11,551,000) (Note 17); 11,551,000 7T) (RHEE17)

(iv) certain of the Group’s inventories held under (ivy AEBREEWBRITER ﬁ}#ﬁﬁ?—r
trust receipts bank loan arrangements (Note 15); BRETEE (RMsE15) ;
and

(v) guarantees provided by the Company and v) ARBAREETHBRAMREZE
certain of its subsidiaries. R o

31. Approval of accounts 31. lRE#tE
The accounts were approved by the board of RER-—ZZNFLtA+HEARESSH
directors on 15th July, 2004. pi: 0



